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NOTICE

TAI INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: LO1222WB1983PLCO59695

53A, Mirza Ghalib Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 016
Ph No.:  (033) 4041 6666; Fax: (033) 22497319

E-mail: info@taiind.com; Website: www.taiind.com

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Ninth Annual General Mee�ng of the Members of Tai Industries Limited will be held on 
thMonday, 26  of September, 2022 at  03.30 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to 

transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

st1. T   o receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended 31  March, 2022, and 
the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon and to pass the following Resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

st  “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2022, and the 
Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon, placed before this Mee�ng be and are hereby considered and 
adopted.”

2. To appoint Dasho Topgyal Dorji (DIN: 00296793), Director re�ring by rota�on and eligible for reappointment, by 
passing the following Resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Dasho Topgyal Dorji (DIN: 
00296793), who re�res by rota�on at this Mee�ng under Ar�cle 72(ii) of the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, 
be and is hereby reappointed as Director of the Company.”

Special Business

 To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modifica�on(s) the following Resolu�ons as Special Resolu�ons:

3. R   e-appointment of Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) as Managing Director of the Company.

  “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sec�ons 196, 197 and 203, read with Schedule V and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in force) 
approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment and terms of remunera�on of Mr. Rohan 
Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 (three) years with effect from May 19, 
2022, whose reappointment has been recommended by the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, on the terms and 
condi�ons including remunera�on as set out in the statement annexed to the No�ce convening this Mee�ng.”

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee be and are hereby 
authorised to alter and vary the terms and condi�ons of the said appointment and /or remunera�on as the Board or the 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee may deem fit and as may be acceptable to Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965), 
subject to the limita�ons in that behalf contained in Schedule V to the Act, including any statutory modifica�on or 
reenactment thereof for the �me being in force or any amendment and/or modifica�ons that may herea�er be made 
thereto by the Central Government.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits of the Company in any financial year during the 
term of Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) in the office of the Managing Director, the salary and perquisites as set out in 
the aforesaid agreement be paid or granted to Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) as minimum remunera�on.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolu�on.”
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 4.     Re-appointment of Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) as Whole �me Director of the Company 

  RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sec�ons 196, 197 and 203, read with Schedule V and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in force) and 
subject to the approval of the Central Government, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
reappointment and terms of remunera�on of Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) as Whole-�me Director of the 
Company for a period of 3 (three) years with effect from 20th May, 2022, whose reappointment has been recommended 
by the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, upon such terms and condi�ons as set out in the Agreement entered 
into between the Company and Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747), a copy whereof is placed before the Mee�ng and 
ini�aled by the Managing Director for the purpose of iden�fica�on, 

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, be and are hereby 
authorized to alter and vary from �me to �me the terms and condi�ons of the said appointment and/or Agreement in 
such manner as may be agreed upon by and between the Board/ Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and Mr. 
Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747), subject to the limita�ons in that behalf contained in Schedule V to the Act including any 
statutory modifica�on or reenactment thereof for the �me being in force or any amendment and/or modifica�ons that 
may herea�er be made thereto by the Central Government.”

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits of the Company in any financial year during the 
term of Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) in the office of the Whole-�me Director, the salary and perquisites as set out 
in the aforesaid agreement be paid or granted to Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) as minimum remunera�on.”

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, 
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolu�on.”

Priyanka  Mukherjee
(ACS-29620)

 Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata

thDate: 25  May, 2022

By Order of the Board

4

th
39  Annual Report 2021-2022



Notes:

1. The relevant statement pursuant to Sec�on 102(1) of the Companies  Act ,2013 in respect of items of Special Business is 

annexed hereto 

2. In view of COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norms and restric�ons on movement of persons at several places in the 

country and pursuant to General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020 and 02/2021 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, 

May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021 and 05th May, 2022 respec�vely issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') 

(collec�vely referred to as 'MCA Circulars') and Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 and SEBI/HO/CFD/ 

CMD2/ CIR/P/2021/11 dated May 12, 2020 and January 15, 2021 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 

dated May 13,2022 issued by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (collec�vely referred to as 'SEBI Circulars') 

permi�ed the holding of the Annual General Mee�ng ('AGM') through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the 

Members in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, as amended ('the Lis�ng Regula�ons'), MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the 

Company is being held through VC/ OAVM which does not require physical presence of members at a common venue. The 

proceedings of the AGM will be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the deemed 

Venue of the AGM. The Link In�me India Private Limited ("LIIPL") will be providing facility for vo�ng through remote e-vo�ng, 

for par�cipa�on in the AGM through VC facility and e-vo�ng during the AGM. The procedure for par�cipa�ng in the AGM 

through VC is explained hereunder and is also available on the website of the Company at www. taiind.in.com 

3. The 39th  AGM of the Company shall be conducted in accordance with the said circulars of MCA, SEBI and applicable 

provisions of the Act and SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (Lis�ng Regula�ons) 

through VC /OAVM.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member en�tled to a�end and vote at the Annual General Mee�ng 

is en�tled to appoint a proxy to a�end and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since 

this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical a�endance of Members has been 

dispensed with.  Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the Annual 

General Mee�ng and hence the Proxy Form and A�endance Slip are not annexed to the No�ce.

5. The Company has engaged the services of Link In�me India Private Limited (LIIPL) for providing facility for vo�ng through 

remote e-vo�ng, par�cipa�on in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and e-vo�ng during the AGM. The procedure for 

par�cipa�ng in the mee�ng through VC / OAVM is explained at Note No.13 below and is also available on the website of the 

Company at www.taiind.com.

6. Vo�ng can be exercised only by the concerned Member or his/her duly cons�tuted a�orney or, in case of bodies corporate, 

its duly authorised person. A Member need not use all his/her votes.

7. Ins�tu�onal / Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF / JPEG format) of the Board Resolu�on 

authorising its representa�ves to a�end and vote at the AGM, pursuant to Sec�on 113 of the Act, to Link In �me India Private 

Limited at instameet@linkin�me.co.in 

8. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from 20th September 2022 to 26th September, 2022 both days 

inclusive.

9. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OVAM, the Route Map is not annexed to this No�ce.

10. Brief resume of Directors / persons proposed to be appointed / reappointed as s�pulated under Regula�on 36(3) of SEBI 

(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India is annexed 

hereto.

 ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT AND PROCESS FOR REGISTRATION OF EMAIL ID FOR OBTAINING COPY OF 

ANNUAL REPORT:

11. The No�ce of the Annual General Mee�ng along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2021 -2022 is being sent only 

by electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories in accordance 

with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and the Circular issued by SEBI dated May 12, 2020. Members may note that the No�ce of 
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Annual General Mee�ng and Annual Report for the financial year 2021-2022 will also be available on the Company's website 

at www.taiind.com, website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. Members can a�end and par�cipate in the Annual 

General Mee�ng through VC/OAVM facility only.

12. Members a�ending the mee�ng through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purposes of reckoning the quorum under 

Sec�on 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

13. Registra�on of email ID and Bank Account details:

 In case the shareholder's email ID is already registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 

"RTA"/Depositories, log in details for e-vo�ng are being sent on the registered email address. In case the shareholder has not 

registered his/her/their email address with the Company/its RTA/Depositories and or not updated the Bank Account 

mandate for receipt of dividend, the following instruc�ons are to be followed:

 (I) For shares held in physical mode:

  a)  Advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company/Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent, Link 

In�me India Private Limited. The no�fica�on of change of address should be accompanied by the address proof, i.e., 

voter's iden�ty card, electric/telephone bill, driving licence or a copy of the passport or bank statement of the 

member OR

  b)  Log into the website of our RTA, Link In�me India Private Ltd., at www.linkin�me.co.in under Investor Services > 

Email/Bank detail Registra�on. Fill in the details and upload the required documents and submit.

 (ii) For Shares held in Demat mode:

  The shareholder may please contact the Depository Par�cipant ("DP") and register the email address and bank account  

details in the demat account as per the process followed and advised by the DP.

14. Remote e-vo�ng Instruc�ons for shareholders post change in the Login mechanism for individual shareholders holding 

securi�es in demat mode, pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020: 

 a) In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-vo�ng facility provided by the Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholder holding securi�es in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depositories par�cipants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email id in their 

demat accounts in order to access e-Vo�ng facility.

 b) Login method for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode is given below:

  1. Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode with NSDL

  1. Exis�ng IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal 

computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login"" which is 

available under 'IDeAS' sec�on, this will prompt you to enter your exis�ng User ID and Password. A�er successful 

authen�ca�on, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng services under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Vo�ng" 

under e-Vo�ng services and you will be able to see e-Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider 

name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to "InstaVote" website for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-

Vo�ng period.

  2.  If you are not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, op�on to register is available at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com Select 

"Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

  3.  Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com either 

on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon "Login" 

which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' sec�on. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 

(i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as shown on 

the screen. A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to 

"InstaVote" website for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period.

6
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 2. Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode with CDSL

  1. Exis�ng users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and password. Op�on will be made 

available to reach e-Vo�ng page without any further authen�ca�on. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

  2. A�er successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Vo�ng Menu. The Menu will have links of e-

Vo�ng service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to "InstaVote" website for 

cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period.

  3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to register is available at h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/ 

Registra�on/EasiRegistra�on. 

  4. Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e-Vo�ng page by providing demat account number and PAN No. from a link 

in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authen�cate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 

as recorded in the demat Account. A�er successful authen�ca�on, user will be provided links for the respec�ve ESP 

i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to "InstaVote" website for cas�ng your vote during 

the remote e-Vo�ng period.

 3. Individual Shareholders (holding securi�es in demat mode) login through their depository par�cipants You can also login 

using the login creden�als of your demat account through your Depository Par�cipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Vo�ng facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng op�on. Click on e-Vo�ng op�on, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site a�er successful authen�ca�on, wherein you can see e-Vo�ng feature. Click on company 

name or e-Vo�ng service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to "InstaVote" website for cas�ng 

your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period.

   Login method for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in physical form is given below:

 Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form as on the cut-off date for e-vo�ng may register 

for e-Vo�ng facility of Link In�me as under:

1. O  pen the internet browser and launch the URL: h�ps://instavote.linkin�me.co.in 

2. C  lick on "Sign Up" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your following details: - 

A.  User ID: Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered with the   
Company. 

B.  PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Depository Par�cipant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C.  DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorpora�on (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company - in 
DD/MM/YYYY format)

D.  Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company. 

* Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C' and 'D', shall provide their Folio 
number in 'D' above

4 Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character 
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital le�er). 

4 Click "confirm" (Your password is now generated). 

3. C lick on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab. 

4. E nter your User ID, Password and Image Verifica�on (CAPTCHA) Code and click on 'Submit'. 

 Cast your vote electronically:

 1. A�er successful login, you will be able to see the no�fica�on for e-vo�ng. Select 'View' icon. 

 2. E-vo�ng page will appear. 

 3. Refer the Resolu�on descrip�on and cast your vote by selec�ng your desired op�on 'Favour / Against' (If you wish to view 

the en�re Resolu�on details, click on the 'View Resolu�on' file link). 

 4. A�er selec�ng the desired op�on i.e. Favour / Against, click on 'Submit'. A confirma�on box will be displayed. If you wish 

to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes', else to change your vote, click on 'No' and accordingly modify your vote. 
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 Guidelines for Ins�tu�onal shareholders:

 Ins�tu�onal shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-vo�ng 

system of LIIPL at h�ps://instavote.linkin�me.co.in and register themselves as 'Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate 

Body'. They are also required to upload a scanned cer�fied true copy of the board resolu�on /authority le�er/power of 

a�orney etc. together with a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorised representa�ve(s) in PDF format in the 

'Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body' login for the Scru�nizer to verify the same. 

 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in physical mode/ Ins�tu�onal shareholders:

 Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link In�me INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at 

eno�ces@linkin�me.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 - 4918 6000.

 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode:

 Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode may contact the respec�ve helpdesk for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

  Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in Physical mode has forgo�en the password: 

 If an Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in Physical mode has forgo�en the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both 

then the shareholder can use the "Forgot Password" op�on available on the e-Vo�ng website of Link In�me: 

h�ps://instavote.linkin�me.co.in

 ●   Click on 'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and further Click 'forgot password?' 
 ●    Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verifica�on code (CAPTCHA). Click on "SUBMIT".

 In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. Shareholders 

can set the password of his/her choice by providing the informa�on about the par�culars of the Security Ques�on and 

Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as men�oned above. The password should contain 

minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one 

capital le�er. 

 User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Cer�ficate):
 Your User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company

 Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgo�en the password: 

 Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password op�on 

available at abovemen�oned depository/ depository par�cipant's website.

 4 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confiden�al. 

 4 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for vo�ng on the resolu�ons 

contained in this No�ce.

4 During the vo�ng period, shareholders/ members can login any number of �me �ll they have voted on the resolu�on(s) 

for a par�cular "Event”

 c) General guidelines for shareholders : 

  a) Ins�tu�onal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 

Format ) of the relevant Board Resolu�on/Authority le�er etc. with a�ested specimen signature of the duly 

authorised signatory (ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scru�niser by email: tcha�terjeeassociates@gmail.com.
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Login type  Help desk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in 

demat mode with NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in 

demat mode with CDSL 

  Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 

by sending a request at helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com or contact 

at 022- 23058738 or 22- 23058542-43. 



  b) It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confiden�al.

 d) Instruc�on for members for e-vo�ng on the day of the AGM are as follows:

  Once the electronic vo�ng is ac�vated by the scru�nizer/moderator during the mee�ng, shareholders/ members who 

have not exercised their vote through the remote e-vo�ng can cast the vote as under:

  1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Vo�ng "Cast your vote".

  2. Enter Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email Id) 

received during registra�on for InstaMeet and click on 'Submit'.

  3. A�er successful login, you will see "Resolu�on Descrip�on" and against the same the op�on "Favour/ Against" for 

vo�ng.

  4. Cast your vote by selec�ng appropriate op�on i.e. "Favour/Against" as desired. Enter the number of shares (which 

represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 'Favour/Against'.

  5. A�er selec�ng the appropriate op�on i.e. Favour/Against as desired and having decided to vote, click on "Save". A 

confirma�on box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "Confirm", else to change your vote, click 

on "Back" and accordingly modify your vote.

  6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently.

 Note: 

 ▪ Shareholders / Members, who will be present at the Annual General Mee�ng through Insta Meet facility and who have 

not cast their vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 

eligible to vote through e-Vo�ng facility during the Mee�ng.

 ▪ Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng prior to the Annual General Mee�ng will be eligible to 

a�end/par�cipate in the Annual General Mee�ng through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again 

during the Mee�ng.

 Instruc�on for members for a�ending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under 

 - Open the Internet browser and launch the URL:h�ps ://instameet.linkin�me.co.in

 - Select the "Company" and "Event Day" and register with your following details.

 I. Demat No OR Folio No : Enter your 16 Digit demat number or Folio No.

 II. Shareholders /members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the Company.

 III. PAN: Enter 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN) with the Depository 

Par�cipant (DP) /Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

 IV. Mobile Number: Enter your mobile number. 

 V. Email Id :Enter your email id ,as recorded with your DP/Company

 -Click "Go to mee�ng" (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your a�endance is marked for the mee�ng).

 e) Procedure to raise ques�on/seek clarifica�on with respect to Annual Report 

  Shareholders /Members who would like to express their views /ask ques�ons during the Mee�ng may register 

themselves as speaker by sending their request men�oning their name, demat account number /folio number, email id, 

mobile number at agm@taiind.com, 3 days in advance. 

 f) Instruc�on for Shareholders /Members to Speak during the Annual General Mee�ng through Insta Meet 

  ▪ Shareholders/Members who would like to speak during the mee�ng must register their request 3 days in advance 

with the Company on the specific email id created for the general mee�ng. 

  ▪  Shareholder will get the confirma�on on first cum first serve basis depending upon the provisions made by the client.

  ▪ Shareholder will receive "speaking serial number" once they mark a�endance for the mee�ng. 
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  ▪ Other shareholder may ask ques�ons to the panellist, via ac�ve chat-board during the mee�ng. 

  ▪ Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversa�on with panellist by switching on video mode and 

audio of your device. 

 Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the mee�ng /management will announce the name and serial 

number for speaking.

 Shareholders /Members who would like to ask ques�ons, may send their ques�ons well in advance men�oning their name, 

demat account number /folio number, email id ,mobile number at agm@taiind.com. The same will be suitably replied by the 

company.

 Note:

 Those shareholders/members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

ques�ons during the mee�ng. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 

availability of �me for the Annual General Mee�ng.

 Shareholders/ Members are allowed to use camera and are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS 

download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the mee�ng.

 g) F  urther members will be required to use internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the mee�ng.

 h)   Please note that par�cipants connec�ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connec�on via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience audio/video loss due to fluctua�on in their respec�ve network. It is therefore recommended to 

use stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to mi�gate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 i) The Members can join the AGM in VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and a�er the scheduled �me of the 

commencement of the mee�ng by following the procedure men�oned in the No�ce. The facility of par�cipa�on at the 

AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1,000 members on first come first basis. This will not include large 

shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholdings, Promoters, Ins�tu�onal Investors, Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel, the Chairperson of the Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and 

Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Auditors etc., who are allowed to a�end the AGM without restric�on on account 

on first come first serve basis . 

 j) The a�endance of the Members a�ending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 

quorum under Sec�on 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 k) Shareholders / Members , who will be present in the AGM  through InstaMEET facility and have not casted their vote on 

the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from doing so , shall be eligible to vote through e-

Vo�ng facility during the mee�ng .Shareholders /Members who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng prior to the AGM 

will be eligible to a�end/par�cipate in the AGM through Insta Meet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again 

during the mee�ng. 

GENERAL INFORMATION:

15. The Company is registered with Na�onal Securi�es Depository Ltd. ('NSDL'), and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. 

('CDSL'), for dematerializa�on of its Equity Shares which has been allo�ed the ISIN INE358D01018. Link In�meIndia Private 

Limited, having their office at C 101 247, Park, L.B.S .Marg Vikroli (West) Mumbai 400 083 are the Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agents of the Company.

16. To support the "Green Ini�a�ve in Corporate Governance" of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, for paperless compliances by 

companies, members are requested to register their e-mail addresses, in respect of their holdings in the securi�es of the 

Company, for service of no�ce/documents including Annual Reports by the Company by email. Duly signed by the sole/first 

named shareholder, men�oning his name and Folio number. Members are requested to keep the Company/Depository 

Par�cipants informed as and when there is any change in their e-mail addresses. Even a�er registering for e- communica�on, 

the Shareholders of the Company shall be en�tled to receive such communica�on in physical form, upon request.
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17. Members are requested to:

 a.  Communicate on all ma�ers pertaining to their shareholdings with the Company's Registered Office/Company's 

Registrar, quo�ng their respec�ve Ledger Folio Number(s)/ Client ID(s) and DPID(s);

 b. Note that as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making / varying / cancelling nomina�ons is available 

for shareholders in respect of Equity Shares held by them. The relevant Forms can be obtained from the Company's 

Registrars.

18. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated April 20,2018, Members are hereby requested to 

update their PAN and Bank details with the Share Department of the Company / Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

19. For registra�on of transfer of securi�es, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall furnish a copy of their PAN card to the 

Company as well as the Registrar for registra�on of transfer of securi�es.

20. As mandated by SEBI effec�ve from April 1, 2019, except in case of transmission or transposi�on of securi�es, requests for 

effec�ng transfer of securi�es shall not be processed unless the securi�es are held in dematerialized form with a depository. 

In�ma�ons have been sent to all Shareholders holding Shares in physical mode that as per revised regula�on 40 of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, shares will no longer be transferred in physical mode. Shareholders are therefore requested to 

dematerialise their exis�ng shares in physical form. In this regard SEBI has also clarified as follows:

 a) The above decision does not prohibit the investor from holding the shares in physical form; investor has the op�on of 

holding shares in physical form even a�er April 01, 2019.

 b) Any investor who is desirous of transferring shares (which are held in physical form) a�er April 01, 2019 can do so only 

a�er the shares are dematerialized.

 c) The transfer deed(s) once lodged prior to deadline and returned due to deficiency in the document may be re-lodged for 

transfer even a�er the deadline of April 01,2019.

PROCEDURE FOR INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS:

21. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding ,maintained under Sec�on 170 of the Act and 

the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which the directors are interested , maintained under sec�on 189 of the Act 

will be made available electronically for inspec�on by the members during the AGM upon login at Link In�me e-vo�ng 

system at h�ps://instameet.linkin�me.co.in. All the documents referred to in the no�ce will also be made available for 

electronic inspec�on without any fees by the members from the date of circula�on of this no�ce up to the date of the AGM 

i.e.2022 during business hours. Members seeking to inspect such documents mat send request on the email id 

agm@taiind.com from their registered e-mail address men�oning their folio numbers /demat account numbers, at least 1 

working day before the date on which they intend to inspect the document. 

DIVIDEND RELATED INFORMATION:

22. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 dividends for the Financial Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 and equity shares on which such dividend remain unpaid/unclaimed for a period of 7 years will be transferred to 

the 'Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund'("IEPF") cons�tuted by the Central Government. Members, who have not 

encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015 or any subsequent financial year(s) are 

urged to claim such amount from the Share Department of the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

 The last dates of claims for the following dividends are as follows:

Last date for claiming 
unpaid dividend

         31st March, 2015                         28th September, 2015                       3rd November, 2022

         31st March, 2016                         26th September, 2016                       1st November, 2023

Dividend for the financial 
year ended 

Date of declaration of 
dividend 
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 The shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred to the demat account of the IEPF 

Authority. In view of this, Members are requested to claim their dividends from the Company, within the s�pulated �meline.

 The Members, whose unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an online 

applica�on to the IEPF Authority in web Form No. IEPF-5, available on www.iepf.gov.in.

OTHERS:

23. The No�ce for the Mee�ng and the Annual Report 2021 - 2022 will also be available on the Company's website at 

h�p:/www.taiind.com and at the website of Link In�me India Pvt. Ltd, ath�ps://instavote.linkin�me.co.in

24. The e-vo�ng period shall commence on 23rd September, 2022, at 9.a.m. and ends on 25th September,  2022 at 5.00 p.m. 

Once the vote on a resolu�on is cast by a shareholder it cannot be changed subsequently.

25. Vo�ng shall be reckoned in rela�on to a shareholder's holding of the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 19th 

Day of September, 2022 ("cut-off date"). Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the 

Company a�er dispatch of the No�ce and holding shares as on 19th Day of September, 2022, may obtain the login ID and 

password by following the instruc�ons for remote e-vo�ng.

26. Any query rela�ng to the Resolu�ons and e-Vo�ng proposed to be passed at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) may 

be addressed to the Company Secretary of the Company.

27. The Company has appointed Ms. Binita Pandey (Membership No ACS 41594) and failing her Ms. Sumana Mitra (Membership 

No ACS 43291) of M/s T. Cha�erjee & Associates, Company Secretaries (FRN No.- P2007WB067100), as scru�nizer to 

scru�nize the vo�ng  and remote e-vo�ng process in a fair and transparent manner. The firm's e-mail address is 

csbinita.tcs@gmail.com/tcha�erjeeassociates@gmail.com. 

28. The Scru�nizer shall, immediately a�er the conclusion of the Mee�ng, first count the votes cast at the Mee�ng, therea�er 

unblock the votes cast through remote e-Vo�ng in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the 

Company and, not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the Mee�ng, submit a Scru�nizer's Report of the vote cast in 

favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or in his absence to any other person authorised by the Board.

29. The Results declared together with the Scru�nizer's Report shall be placed on the   Company's website at www.taiind.com 

and on the website of Link In�me India Pvt. Ltd, at h�ps://instavote.linkin�me.co.in within forty eight hours of conclusion of 

the Mee�ng and communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

 STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
 Item Number 3 and 4 

 Item No 3

 The Board of Directors of your Company appointed Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) as Managing Director of the Company 

with effect from 19th May, 2019, at its Mee�ng held on that date, for a period of 3 (Three) years. The remunera�on, 

recommended by the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and approved by the Board was for a period of three years 

upto May, 2019. Therea�er, at the Annual General Mee�ng held on 22nd  September, 2019, a Special Resolu�on was passed 

for approving the terms of remunera�on of Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965).

 Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee, taking into account the skills, experience 

and performance evalua�on, the Board of Directors at its Mee�ng held on 25th May, 2022, for the sake of con�nuity of the 

present management and efficient opera�ons of the Company, reappointed Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) as the 

Managing Director of the Company for a further period of 3 (three) years with effect from 19th May, 2022, on the following 

terms and condi�ons:

 ▪      Salary and allowances : Rs 20,34,131/- per annum.

 ▪     Perquisites shall include fully furnished and maintained Company owned/leased residen�al accommoda�on and other 

benefits such as electricity and cooking gas, annual maintenance contract for all electrical and electronic equipments and 

gadgets, use of Company's car and chauffeur, reimbursement of actual cost of petrol, club fees and other benefits such as 

medical insurance for self and family, entertainment expenses, etc. For the purpose of calcula�ng the above ceiling, 

perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated as per the Income Tax Rules wherever applicable. In the absence of any 
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such Rules, perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated at actual cost incurred by the Company in providing such 

perquisites and allowances.

 The Company's contribu�on to provident fund, superannua�on or annuity fund, to the extent these singly or together are 

not taxable under the Income Tax law, and gratuity payable, as per the rules of the Company and to the extent not taxable 

under the Income Tax law, shall not be included for the purpose of computa�on of the overall ceiling on remunera�on. 

 Reimbursement of Expenses:

 Expenses incurred for travelling, board and lodging including for respec�ve spouse and a�endant(s) during business trips, 

any medical assistance provided including for family members and provision of cars for use on the Company's business and 

telephone expenses at residence shall be reimbursed at actuals and not considered as perquisites.

 Minimum Remunera�on: In the absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during his term as the Managing 

Director, Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) will be en�tled to receive the above remunera�on including perquisites as 

minimum remunera�on.

 General

 i.      The Managing Director shall perform his respec�ve du�es as such with regard to all work of the Company and shall 

manage and a�end to such business and carry out the orders and direc�ons given by the Board from �me to �me in all 

respects and shall conform to and comply with all such direc�ons and regula�ons as may from �me to �me be given and 

made by the Board.

 ii.   The Managing Director shall act in accordance with the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company and shall abide by the 

provisions contained in Sec�on 166 of the Act with regard to du�es of directors.

 iii.   The Managing Director shall adhere to the Company's Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management 

Personnel.

 Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) sa�sfies all the condi�ons set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act as also condi�ons set 

out under sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on 196 of the Act for being eligible for appointment. He is not disqualified from being 

appointed as a Director in terms of Sec�on 164 of the Act.

 The Managing Director shall not be paid any si�ng fees for a�ending mee�ngs of the Board of Directors or Commi�ees 

thereof from the date of his appointment.

 Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, the Whole-�me Director shall be subject 

to re�rement by rota�on of Directors and he shall be reckoned as a Director for the purpose of determining the rota�on or 

re�rement of Director or in fixing the number of Directors to re�re in case the number of Managing Director(s) and Whole-

�me Director(s) shall at any �me exceed the total number of Directors who shall not be required to re�re by rota�on under 

the Act and he shall not be understood to have ceased to hold the office of Managing Director if re-elected. He shall ipso facto 

and immediately cease to be the Managing Director if he ceases to hold office of Director for any cause.

 The Managing Director shall not during the con�nuance of his employment or at any �me therea�er divulge or disclose to 

any person whomsoever to make any use whatever for his own or for whatever purpose, of any confiden�al informa�on or 

knowledge obtained by him during his employment as to the business or affairs of the Company or as to any trade secrets or 

secret processes of the Company and the Managing Director shall during the con�nuance of his employment hereunder also 

use his best endeavours to prevent any other person from doing so.

 In terms of Part II of Sec�on II of Schedule V to the Act, consent of the shareholders has to be accorded for a period not 

exceeding three years by way of a Special Resolu�on for payment of remunera�on within the limits as specified therein and 

accordingly your consent is being sought, by way of a Special Resolu�on, for the aforesaid appointment and terms of 

remunera�on.

 The Nomina�on Remunera�on Commi�ee also recommends the reappointment of Mr. Ghosh as Managing Director.

 Brief resume of Mr. Rohan Ghosh, nature of his exper�se in specific func�onal areas, names of companies in which he holds 

directorships and memberships / chairmanships of board commi�ees, shareholding and rela�onships amongst directors 
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inter-se, as s�pulated in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of Company 

Secretaries of India, has been provided in the No�ce.

 Your Board recommends passing of the Special Resolu�on set out in Item No.3 of the No�ce.

 Except Mr. Rohan Ghosh, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel are concerned or interested in the Resolu�on.

 Item Number 4

 Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) was appointed Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years with 

effect from 20th May, 1995 with the approval of the Company at its Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on 10th July, 1995 

and approval of the Central Government, vide its le�er no. 4/126/95-CLIX dated 21st November, 1995. He was re-appointed 

twice for successive periods of 5 (five) years and therea�er thrice for the successive periods of 3 (three) years, the details of 

which are as follows:

Period Date of Annual General Mee�ng
at which shareholders approval

Le�er of approval received from Central 
Government was obtained

th
20  May, 2000

thto 19  May, 2005
th20  May, 2005

thto 19  May, 2010

20th May, 2010
to 19th May, 2013

th20  May, 2013
thto 19  May, 2016

th20  May, 2016
thto 19   May, 2019

th20  May, 2019
thto 19   May, 2022

th25 September, 2000

th28  September, 2005

th30  August, 2010

nd2  September, 2013

th26  September, 2016

th22   August , 2019

Le�er No. 1/232/2000 – CL.VII 
Dated 28-09-2000

Le�er No. 1/232/2005 – CL.VII 
dated 2-09-2005

Le�er No. 1/232/2010 – CL.VII 
Dated 22-12-2010

Le�er No.B81974925/2013 – CL.VII 
Dated 08-01-2014

Le�er No. SRN G09226978/1/2016 – CL-VII 
Dated 01-02-2017

Le�er No.SRNR12941217/79/2021-CL-VIII 
Dated 14-11-2019

As per the service agreement dated 20th May, 2019, entered into by and between the Company and Mr. Wangchuk Dorji, the  
term of appointment of Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) as a Whole-�me Director expired on 19th May, 2022.

Based on the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Recommenda�on - Commi�ee, taking into account the skills, experience 
and performance evalua�on, the Board of Directors at its Mee�ng held on 25th May, 2022, for the sake of con�nuity of the 
present management and for efficient running of the Company, re-appointed Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) as Whole-
�me Director for a further period of 3 (three) years with effect from 20th May, 2022, on the following terms and condi�ons as 
contained, interalia, in the Service Agreement entered into by and between the Company and Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 
00296747).

A. SALARY

 Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh only) per month with effect from 20th May, 2022 with annual increment of Rs.  
5000/- (Rupees five thousand only) in the scale of Rs. 2,00,000/ – Rs. 5000/ – Rs.2,10,000/-.

B. PERQUISITES

 These shall be restricted to an amount equal to annual salary. Unless the context otherwise requires, the 
perquisites are classified into three categories “A” “B” and “C” as follows:

CATEGORY “A”

1. Medical Reimbursement

 Expenses incurred for self and family subject to a ceiling of one month's salary (including premium for mediclaim 
insurance policy) in a year or three months' salary over a period of three years.
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2. Leave Travel Concession

 For self and family once in a year incurred in accordance with the rules specified by the Company.

3. Club Fees

 Fees of Clubs, subject to a maximum of two clubs but not including admission and life membership fees.

4. Personal Accident Insurance

 Premium not to exceed Rs. 4000/- (Rupees four thousand only) per annum. For the purpose of this part, “family” 
means spouse, dependent children and dependent parents of Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN: 00296747).

5. Other Allowances

 In addi�on to the perquisites at (1), (2), (3) and (4) above, the Whole-�me Director shall be eligible for the 
following perquisites which shall not be included in the computa�on of the ceiling on perquisites:-

 (a) Reimbursement of expenses incurred on joining duty and returning to home country a�er comple�on of 
tenure: Actual expenses incurred on travel and on packing, forwarding, loading and unloading as well as 
freight, insurance, customs duty, clearing expenses, local transporta�on and installa�on expenses in 
connec�on with the moving of personal effects for self and family for joining duty in India and also a�er 
comple�on of the tenure on leaving the employment of the Company.

 (b) Leave Travel concession: In case it is proposed that the leave be spent in the home country instead of 
anywhere in India, return passage may be allowed for self and family in accordance with the rules specified by 
the Company

 (c) Children's educa�onal allowance: In case of children studying in or outside India, an allowance limited to a 
maximum of Rs. 12,000/- (Rupees twelve thousand only) per month per child or actual expenses incurred, 
whichever is less, is admissible. Such allowance is admissible upto a maximum of two children.

 (d) Holidaying passage for children studying outside India family staying abroad: Return holiday passage is 
admissible once in a year by economy class or once in two years by first class to children from their place of 
study abroad to India and to the members of the family from the place of their stay abroad to India, if they are 
not residing in India with the Whole-�me Director.

  Explana�on: For the purpose of Category “A” “family” means spouse, the dependent children and dependent 
parents of the appointee.

CATEGORY “B”

Contribu�ons to Provident Fund, Superanua�on Fund or Annuity

Contribu�ons to Provident Fund, Superanua�on Fund or Annuity will not be included in the computa�on of the 
ceiling on perquisites to the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 

1961. Gratuity payable shall not exceed half a month's salary for each completed year of service.

EARNED LEAVE

The un-availed por�on of leave shall be encashable on full pay at the end of the tenure as per the rules of the 
Company, but not exceeding one month's leave for every eleven months of service. However, it will not be included in 
the computa�on of the ceiling on perquisites.

CATEGORY “C”

The Company shall provide a car with driver and telephone facility at the residence of the Whole-�me Director. 
Provision of car for use on Company's business and telephone at the residence will not be considered as perquisites. 
Personal long distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purposes shall be billed by the Company.

Minimum Remunera�on: In the absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during his term as a Whole-
�me Director, Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) will be en�tled to receive the above remunera�on and 
perquisites as minimum remunera�on.
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The Whole-�me Director shall not be paid any si�ng fees for a�ending mee�ngs of the Board of Directors or 
Commi�ees thereof from the date of his appointment.

The Head Office of the Company is situated at present in Kolkata and the Whole-�me Director will be a�ending the 
office as he thinks appropriate.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, the Whole-�me Director shall be 
subject to re�rement by rota�on of Directors and he shall be reckoned as a Director for the purpose of determining 
the rota�on or re�rement of Director or in fixing the number of Directors to re�re in case the number of Managing 
Director(s) and Whole-�me Director(s) shall at any �me exceed the total number of Directors who shall not be 
required to re�re by rota�on under the Act and he shall not be understood to have ceased to hold the office of the 
Whole-�me Director if re-elected. But he shall ipso facto and immediately cease to be the Whole-�me Director if he 
ceases to hold office of Director for any cause.

The Whole-�me Director shall not during the con�nuance of his employment or at any �me therea�er divulge or 
disclose to any person whomsoever to make any use whatever for his own or for whatever purpose, of any 
confiden�al informa�on or knowledge obtained by him during his employment as to the business or affairs of the 
Company or as to any trade secrets or secret processes of the Company and the Whole-�me Director shall during the 
con�nuance of his employment hereunder also use his best endeavours to prevent any other person from doing so.

In terms of Part II of Sec�on II of Schedule V to the Act, consent of the shareholders has to be accorded for a period 
not exceeding three years by way of a Special Resolu�on for payment of remunera�on within the limits as specified 
therein and accordingly your consent is being sought, by way of a Special Resolu�on, for the aforesaid appointment 
and terms of remunera�on.

Mr. Wangchuk Dorji, not being an Indian resident, such re-appointment requires the approval of the Central 
Government, in terms of Sec�on 196 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Save and except the above, Mr. Wangchuk Dorji sa�sfies all the condi�ons set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act as 
also condi�ons set out under sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on 196 of the Act for being eligible for reappointment.

Your Company is also proceeding to make an applica�on for obtaining the approval of the Central Government in 
terms of Sec�on 196 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Brief resume of Mr. Wangchuk Dorji, nature of his exper�se in specific func�onal areas, names of companies in which 
he holds directorship and membership/chairmanships of board commi�ees, shareholding and rela�onships 
amongst directors inter-se, as s�pulated in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India, has been provided in the No�ce.

Your Board recommends passing of the Special Resolu�on set out in Item No.4 of the No�ce.

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee also recommends the appointment of Mr. Wangchuk Dorji as Whole-
�me Director.

Except Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) and Mr. Topgyal Dorji (DIN : 00296793), none of the Directors or Key 
Managerial Personnel are concerned or interested in the Resolu�on.

This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as an appropriate disclosure under the Lis�ng Regula�ons.
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INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS BEING REAPPOINTED IN TERMS OF REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND THE SECRETARIAL 

STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA.

Mr. Rohan Ghosh
 (DIN: 00032965)Name of Director

Dasho Wangchuk Dorji
(DIN: 00296747)

Dasho Topgyal Dorji 
(DIN:00296793)

Age

Date of Appointment

Qualifica�on 

Brief resume and 
nature of his exper�se

56 Years

30th October, 1993

A graduate from New 
Hampshire College, USA with 

specializa�on in Business 
Finance and Economics

He has been serving the 
Company for the last twenty 

six years. He is the 
Vice–Chairman of Tashi 

Commercial Corpora�on, the 
largest business conglomerate 

in Bhutan and is also a 
Director on the Board of 

several companies in Bhutan.

59 Years

30th October, 1993

A graduate from New 
Hampshire College, USA with 

specializa�on in marke�ng. He 
had undergone extensive 

training in Norway on Ferro 
Alloys.

He is the Vice–Chairman of 
Tashi Commercial Corpora�on, 

the

largest business conglomerate 
in Bhutan and is also a 

Director on the Board of 
several companies in Bhutan.

In recogni�on of his manifold 
contribu�on to the economy, 

Dasho Topgyal Dorji was

made the President of the 
Bhutan Chamber of Commerce 

and Industries.

64 Years

19th May, 2014

Mr. Rohan Ghosh was 
educated at the St. Pauls' 
School, Darjeeling and has 
graduated from Presidency 

College, Kolkata.

He started his career as a 
trader in a Singaporean 

Company and as its

Vice-President 
(Commodi�es), looked a�er 
the trade in the regions of 

Nepal, Bangladesh, Sri Lanka 
and the Middle East.

In recogni�on of his 
leadership abili�es, Mr. Rohan 

Ghosh had been entrusted 
with the oversight of the 
en�re opera�ons of Tai 

Industries Limited. He has 
been instrumental in 

spearheading the Company's 
diversifica�on in to the areas 
of sale of industrial minerals 

and retail. In fact, 'C3 The 
Marketplace', the large for 

matsuperstore is the 
brainchild of Mr. Rohan 

Ghosh. He is an avid sports 
enthusiast.

Details of Shares in the 
Company

NIL NIL NIL

Rela�onship with other 
Directors/ KMPs

Related to 
Dasho Topgyal Dorji

Related to 
Dasho Wangchuk Dorji

None

Terms and Condi�ons of 
appointment/
reappointment

Liable to re�re by Rota�on Liable to re�re by Rota�on Liable to re�re by Rota�on
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Mr. Rohan Ghosh
 (DIN: 00032965)Name of Director

Dasho Wangchuk Dorji
(DIN: 00296747)

Dasho Topgyal Dorji 
(DIN:00296793)

No. of Mee�ngs of   
Board a�ended

Renumera�on to be 
paid

Directorships/
Commi�ee
Memberships in

Listed En��es

List of Bodies Corporate 
in which outside 
directorships held as on 
31st March, 2019

4

Details of remunera�on 
provided in the Explanatory 
Statement to the No�ce of 

AGM

Does not hold any 
Directorship or Commi�ee 
Membership in any listed 

en�ty other than Tai 
Industries Limited.

1. Bhutan Fruit Products 
Private Limited

2.   Bhutan Brewery Private 
Limited

3. Royal Insurance 
Corpora�on of Bhutan 
Limited

4. Tashi Infocomm Limited

5. Tashi Group of Companies

6. Bhutan Carbide and 
Chemicals Limited 

7. JAMIPOL Limited

8.  Rijal Tashi Industries 
Private Limited

9. Bhutan Ferro Alloys 
Limited

10. Tashi Beverages Limited

11. Bhutan Silicon Metal   
Private Limited

12. T Bank Limited

13. Tashi Metals Private  
Limited

4

Si�ng Fees 

Does not hold any Directorship 
or Commi�ee Membership in 
any listed en�ty other than Tai 

Industries Limited.

1. Bhutan Carbide and  
Chemicals Limited.

2. Bhutan Eco Ventures 
Private Limited

3. Tashi Beverages Limited

4. Bhutan Silicon Metal 
Private Limited

5. Tashi Group of Companies

6. Bhutan Ferro Alloys Limited

7. Bhutan Fruit Products 
Private Limited

8. Bhutan Brewery Private 
Limited 

9. Tashi Infocomm Limited

10. Tai Projects Private Limited

11. JAMIPOL Limited

12. Rijal Tashi Industries 
Private Limited

13. T Bank Limited

14. Tashi Metals Private 
Limited

4

Details of remunera�on 
provided in the Explanatory 
Statement to the No�ce of 

AGM

Does not hold any Directorship 
or Commi�ee Membership in 

any listed en�ty other than 
Tai Industries Limited.

1. JAMIPOL Limited

2. Ronan Services Private 
Limited.

3. Tashi Metals Private Limited

Chairman / Member 
of Commi�ees of other 
Companies on which he 
is a Director 
(Commi�ees include the 
Statutory Commi�ees) 
as on 31st March, 2022

Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee

1. JAMIPOL Limited

Corporate Social 
Responsibility

1. JAMIPOL Limited
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION II (B) (iv) OF PART II OF SCHEDULE V OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, FOR 
REAPPOINTMENT OF WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

1. GENERAL INFORMATION Nature of Industry.

 The Company is a trading organiza�on carrying on the business of:

 ● marke�ng and distribu�on, in India, of “DRUK” brand of fruit products such as squashes, jams, fruit juices, pickles, 
sauces, etc., manufactured by Bhutan Fruit Products Private Limited, in Bhutan.

 ● trading and marke�ng of industrial and mineral products and raw materials such as Charcoal, Ferro Silicon, etc.

Date of commencement of commercial produc�on

Tai Industries Limited was incorporated on 5th May 1983 as Tashi Agro Industries Private Limited with the objec�ve of marke�ng 
agro based and mineral products.

The Company started its opera�ons in 1986 and since then it has been engaged in the marke�ng of 'DRUK' brand fruit products 
manufactured by its group company – Bhutan Fruit Products Private Limited.

Besides fruit products, the Company has also been marke�ng mineral products, par�cularly calcium carbide, manganese ore, 
charcoal, Ferro Silicon etc., since 1988.

Financial performance based on given indicators

The year under review registered from the opera�ons a turnover of Rs. 30,082.43 Crores as against a turnover of Rs. 18,602.06 
Crores during the previous financial year. The Company has posted a profit a�er tax of Rs. 412.35 lakhs, for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2022, against a profit a�er tax of Rs. 273.48  lakhs in the previous financial year.

Export performance and net foreign exchange collabora�ons.

The Company is trading in Charcoal and Ferro Silicon with Bhutan. However, trade between India and Bhutan are being 
transacted in Indian Rupees.

2. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE 

Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) Background details

Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965), aged about 64 years, started his career as a trader in a Singaporean Company and as its Vice-
President (Commodi�es), looked a�er the trade in the regions of Nepal, Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and the Middle East.

In recogni�on of his leadership abili�es, Mr. Rohan Ghosh had been entrusted with the oversight of the en�re opera�ons of Tai 
Industries Limited. He has been instrumental in spearheading the Company's diversifica�on into the areas of sale of industrial 
minerals and retail. 

Mr. Rohan Ghosh was educated at St Pauls' School, Darjeeling and has graduated from Presidency College, Kolkata. Mr. Rohan 
Ghosh is an avid sports enthusiast.

Past remunera�on

His remunera�on in the last five years have been as follows
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Job profile and his suitability

Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) has been serving the Company since 1994 and has been the President �ll 2014. In view  of his 
experience th, exper�se and background, he was appointed Managing Director of the Company with effect from 19  May, 2014.

Remunera�on proposed

Salary and allowances: Rs per annum.: 20,34,131//- 

Perquisites, which shall include maintenance of residen�al accommoda�on and other benefits such as electricity and cooking 
gas, annual maintenance contract for all electrical and electronic equipments and gadgets, use of Company's car and chauffeur, 
reimbursement of actual cost of petrol, club fees and other benefits such as medical insurance for self and family, entertainment 
expenses, etc.

Provident Fund and Gratuity, as per the Rules of the Company

The Company's contribu�on to provident fund, superannua�on or annuity fund, to the extent these singly or together are not 
taxable under the Income Tax law, gratuity payable and encashment of leave, as per the rules of the Company and to the extent 
not taxable under the Income Tax law, shall not be included for the purpose of computa�on of the overall ceiling of 
remunera�on.

Reimbursement of Expenses

Expenses incurred for travelling, board and lodging including for respec�ve spouse and a�endant(s) during business trips, any 
medical assistance provided including for family members; and provision of cars for use on the Company's business and 
telephone expenses at residence shall be reimbursed at actuals and not considered as remunera�on.

Compara�ve remunera�on profile with respect to industry, etc

The remunera�on to the Managing Director is based on both market prac�ce as well as internal business considera�ons. From 
the market viewpoint, the Company has posi�oned his remunera�on package keeping in mind the industry and size of the 
organiza�on. Internally, responsibility, competency and profile of the person forms the basis of remunera�on.

Addi�onally, the structure of the remunera�on has been so framed as to reward performance.

Pecuniary rela�onship

Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) has no pecuniary rela�onship directly or indirectly with the Company apart from receiving 
remunera�on as Managing Director.

Mr.	Wangchuk	Dorji	(DIN	:	00296747)

Background details

Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN: 00296747 Bhutanese na�onal. He is the Vice - Chairman of Tashi Commercial ), aged 56 years, is a 
Corpora�on, the largest business conglomerate in Bhutan. He is also a Director of several companies in Bhutan and also a  
Director of Jamipol Limited, a Joint Venture between the Company, the Tata Group and SKW Metalchemie GMBH, Germany, 
which is engaged in the manufacture of desulphurisa�on compounds which are required in the Iron and Steel industry.

Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN: 00296747) is a Graduate of New Hampshire College, USA, with specializa�on in Finance and has been 
serving the Company for the last twenty one years.

Past remunera�on

His remuneration in the last five years have been as follows:

20

th
39  Annual Report 2021-2022

Salary 23,31,667 24,61,667 24,32,292 23,89,167 21,58,334

Commission - - - - -

Other benefits - - - - -

Re�ral Benefits 279,800 255,300 218,685 2,34,800 2,36,600

Total 26,11,467 27,46,967 26,96,792 26,32,967 23,94,934



Job profile and his suitability

Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN: 00296747) has been the Managing Director of the Company since 1995. He was designated as a 
Whole-�me Director of the Company on change in the terms of his employment. Mr. Wangchuk Dorji th19  May, 2014, with no 
(DIN: 00296747), as a Whole-�me Director, shall exercise and perform such powers and du�es as the Board of Directors of the 
Company may from �me to �me determine, and shall also perform all other acts and things which in the ordinary course of 
business he may consider necessary or proper or in the interest of the Company.

Since 1995, Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) has been closely involved in resolving various complex business issues. His 
extensive prac�cal experience as Director of several companies in Bhutan and as Vice – Chairman of Tashi Commercial 
Corpora�on, the largest conglomerate in Bhutan, have proved invaluable in the successful comple�on of varied transac�ons.

Remunera�on proposed

Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two lakhs only) per month with effect from 20th May, 2022 with annual increment of Rs. 5000/- (Rupees 
five thousand only) in the scale of Rs. 2,00,000/ – Rs. 5000/ – Rs. 2,10,000/-.

Compara�ve remunera�on profile with respect to industry, etc

The remunera�on to the Whole-�me Director is based on both market prac�ce as well as internal business considera�ons. From 
the market viewpoint, the Company has posi�oned his remunera�on package keeping in mind the industry and size of the 
organiza�on. Internally, responsibility, competency and profile of the person forms the basis of remunera�on. Addi�onally, the 
structure of the remunera�on has been so framed as to reward performance. 

Pecuniary rela�onship

Mr. Wangchuk Dorji (DIN : 00296747) has no pecuniary rela�onship directly or indirectly with the Company apart from receiving 
remunera�on as Whole-�me Director. He is related to Mr. Topgyal Dorji, (DIN : 00296793) who is a Non Execu�ve Director of the 
Company.

REQUEST TO MEMBERS

Members desirous of ge�ng informa�on/clarifica�on on the Accounts and Opera�ons of the company or intending to raise 
any query are requested to forward the same at least 7 days in advance of the mee�ng to the Company Secretary at the 
office so as the same may be a�ended appropriately.

 By order of the Board 
 Priyanka Mukherjee 
(ACS-29620)
          Company Secretary 

Place :Kolkata
thDate :25  May, 2022                

21

th
39  Annual Report 2021-2022



TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presen�ng their 39�� Annual Report on the business and opera�ons of your Company for the year 
ended 31st March, 2022.

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE
Rupees in Lakhs

SHARE CAPITAL
stThe Paid -up- Share Capital of the Company, comprising Equity Shares, is Rs.6 Crores as on 31   March, 2022. The Company has 

not, during the year, issued any shares with or without differen�al vo�ng rights, granted stock op�ons or issued sweat equity 
shares.

EXTRACT ANNUAL RETURN

As per the requirements of Sec�on 92(3) of the Act  and Rules framed thereunder, the annual return is available on the website 
of the Company on website www.tainind.com

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
th th th thDuring the year under review, four Board Mee�ngs were held on 29   June 2021, 10   August, 2021, 9   November, 2021 and 11  

February, 2022.

The intervening gap between the Mee�ngs was within the period as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Company has adopted the Indian Accoun�ng Standards (“IndAS”) no�fied under the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards) Rules 2015, for prepara�on and presenta�on of these Financial Statements. 

The financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and are compliant with the accoun�ng 
standards no�fied in the Companies Act, 2013.

Par�culars                                                                                                                           
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
Year ended 

31st March, 2021

Turnover 30.082.43 18602.06 

Profit/(Loss) before Interest, Deprecia�on & Taxa�on (PBIDT) 614.62 316.95 

Interest 0.29 .00 

Profit/(Loss) before Deprecia�on & Taxa�on (PBDT) 614.33 316.95 

Deprecia�on 27.07 24.24 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and Extraordinary items (PBTE) 587.26 292.71 

Extraordinary items 0.00 11.55

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (PBT) 587.26 304.26  

Provision for Taxa�on / (Deferred Tax) (174.92) (30.79)   

Profit/(Loss) A�er Tax (PAT) (A) 412.35 273.47 

Other Comprehensive Income 72.39 66.95 

Total Comprehensive Income 484.74 340.42   

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, that:

(a) In the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards have been followed along with proper 
explana�ons rela�ng to material departures;

(b)  The Directors have selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and es�mates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(c)  The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with 
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other 
irregulari�es;

(d)  The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company which are adequate and opera�ng 
effec�vely; and

(f)   The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems are adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

STATEMENT OF DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Mr. Prem Sagar (DIN: 00040396), Mr. K.N. Malhotra (DIN: 00128479), Mr. Vinay Killa (DIN: 00060906) and Ms. Sarada Hariharan 
(DIN: 06914753), Independent Directors, have filed the requisite declara�ons with the Company in accordance with Sec�on 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013(the Act) to the effect that they qualify as Independent Directors within the meaning of 
Sec�on 149(6) of the Act.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Upon the recommenda�ons of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee in terms of Sec�on 178(4) of the Companies Act 
2013, your Board has adopted a policy rela�ng to the remunera�on for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees of the Company. The salient features of the said policy, is annexed herewith as “Annexure A” the complete Policy can 
be viewed at the official website of the Company at www.tainind.com

The composi�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee is as follows:

 Mr. Prem Sagar Independent Director  Chairman

 Dasho Topgyal Dorji Non-execu�ve Director Member

 Mr. Kanwal Nain Malhotra Independent Director Member

 Mr. Vinay Killa Independent Director Member

DIRECTORS' RESPONSE TO COMMENTS MADE IN THE STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT AND IN THE REPORT OF THE 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Statutory Auditors have issued an Audit Report with unmodified opinion on the Financial Results of the Company for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022 and there were no qualifica�ons or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditor's Report and in the 
Secretarial Audit Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans, guarantees or made any investments in excess of the threshold amounts as prescribed in 
Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transac�ons that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and were in the 
ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant related party transac�ons made by the Company with 
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a poten�al conflict with the 
interests of the Company. All Related Party Transac�ons were placed before the Audit Commi�ee and also the Board, for 
approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Commi�ee has been obtained on a quarterly basis for the transac�ons which 
were of a foreseen and repe��ve nature. The statement of par�culars of contracts or arrangements with related par�es referred 
to in Sec�on 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto as “Annexure B.
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STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The Income from the opera�ons of your Company compared to that of the previous year, is given hereunder:

   Par�culars Fruit Product Industrial Total
 (₹ Lakhs) (₹ Lakhs) (₹ Lakhs)

   Revenue 

   Current Year 969.78 29,113.08 30,082.86

   Previous Year 975.19 17,626.87 18,602.06

PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Fruit Product Division

Increasing urbaniza�on, lifestyle changes, greater affluence and increased rates of women working outside of home are driving 
the demand for processed foods.

Arising out of the COVID pandemic, there has been a significant shi� in the choice of food and this has impacted the performance 
of the Fruit Product Division. 

Con�nued efforts are being made to sustain an efficient supply chain and distribu�on network that ensures visibility and 
availability of products in the market. DRUK products are very popular with the customers and being mindful of their needs, we 
ensure that our business con�nues to grow,

Industrial Division

The supply of our Ferro Silicon to the markets was sa�sfactory. 

Charcoal supply was maintained as per regular demand in Bhutan.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Board has considered appropriate not to transfer any amount to the General Reserves of the Company. 

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have not recommended payment of any dividend on equity shares of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 
2022 in order to conserve funds for the future development and growth of the Company.

OTHER INFORMATION

Conserva�on of Energy

Your Company's ac�vi�es being trading in nature, energy consumed is only in the nature of electrical consump�on for use and 
maintenance of office appliances. However, the efforts of your Company are aimed at keeping the consump�on levels to as low 
as prac�cable.

Technology Absorp�on

Your Company not being engaged in any manufacturing ac�vity, there is no informa�on to be provided in this regard.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

As trade between India and Bhutan are being transacted in Indian Rupees, there has been no foreign exchange earnings or outgo 
during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company has implemented an effec�ve risk management policy focusing on risk assessment, risk management and risk 
monitoring, aimed at reducing losses or injury arising out of various risk exposures.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD,  COMMITTES AND DIRECTORS

In terms of sec�on 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of Directors has adopted an annual evalua�on process for 
evalua�ng its own performance as a whole and that of its Commi�ees and of its individual Directors.
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As the law has not prescribed any evalua�on methodology, the following factors have been considered for evalua�ng the 
performance of the Board/ Commi�ees/ Directors/ Chairperson/ Managing Director/ Whole-�me Director on a case to case 
basis:

▪ People factors (knowledge, personal characteris�cs, Board size, structure, directors contribu�on, interpersonal skills, level 
of commitment, Board room behaviour, etc); and 

▪ Process factors (planning and managing Board mee�ngs, informa�on flow, oversight management, risk management, 
coordina�on, etc.)

Each Director is given a Form for assessing the overall performance of the Board/ Commi�ees/ Directors/ Chairperson/ 
Managing Director/ Whole�me Director as the case may be, sufficiently in advance. The forms, which include a set of ques�ons 
having a ra�ng mechanism, are reviewed and analysed by the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee before placing its 
feedback before the Board.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with Ar�cle 68  of the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, Dasho Topgyal Dorji (DIN:00296793), re�res by 
rota�on at the forthcoming Annual General Mee�ng and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

During the current year, the tenure of Dasho Wangchuk Dorji (DIN: 00296747) as Whole Time Director expired on 19th May, 
2022 and he was reappointed by the Board as Whole Time Director upon the recommenda�ons of the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company and the Central Government for a period 
of three years with effect from May 20th, 2022.

During the current year, the tenure of Mr. Rohan Ghosh (DIN: 00032965) as Managing Director expired on 18th May, 2022 and he 
was reappointed by the Board as Managing Director upon the recommenda�ons of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
Commi�ee, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 19th May, 
2022.

Appropriate resolu�ons seeking your approval to the aforesaid appointments of the Whole �me Director and Managing Director 
and the terms of their remunera�on have been provided in the No�ce convening the 39th Annual General Mee�ng.

All Directors have cer�fied that the disqualifica�ons men�oned under Sec�ons 164, 167, and 169 of the Companies Act, 2013 do 
not apply to them. Your Directors hereby affirm that the Directors are not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue 
of any SEBI order or any order from such other authority.

The Independent Directors have affirmed compliance with the Code for the Independent Directors men�oned in Schedule IV of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Independent Directors have given their declara�on that they meet the criteria of independence 
referred to in Sec�on 149(6) of the Company's Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified to act as such Independent Directors.

Brief profiles of the Directors being reappointed have been provided in the No�ce of the Annual General Mee�ng.

KEY MANGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following func�oned as Key Managerial Personnel during the year:

   Rohan Ghosh                                               Managing Director

   Mou Mukherjee                                          Chief Financial Officer

   Priyanka Mukherjee                                   Company Secretary 

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public, falling within the ambit of Sec�on 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS

During the year under report, there were no significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals, 
impac�ng the Company's going concern status and its future opera�ons.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has an adequate internal audit system, carried out by external firms of Chartered Accountants, which is 
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its opera�ons. The Internal Auditors submit their Reports upon comple�on 
of limited review/audit for considera�on by the Directors.
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Based on the reports of internal auditors, the respec�ve heads of the departments/divisions undertake correc�ve ac�on in their 
respec�ve areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observa�ons and correc�ve ac�ons thereon are 
presented to the Audit Commi�ee of the Board.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

It is not obligatory on the part of your Company to have a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy/Commi�ee since your 
Company's net worth, turnover and net profit during the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 is below the threshold limits 
as specified in Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commi�ee consists of three Non-execu�ve Independent Directors, possessing the requisite experience and 
exper�se.

The composi�on of the Audit Commi�ee is as follows:

  Mr. Prem Sagar Independent Director Chairman

  Mr. Kanwal Nain Malhotra Independent Director Member

  Mr. Vinay Killa Independent Director Member

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Commi�ee and the Managing Director and The Chief Financial Officer are invitees 
to the Mee�ngs of the Commi�ee. 

All recommenda�ons of the Audit Commi�ee were duly accepted by the Board and there were no instances of any 
disagreements between the Commi�ee and the Board during the year.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has put in place a Vigil Mechanism Policy in accordance with Sec�on 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
details of the policy may be viewed at the official website of the Company at www.taiind.com and is also annexed hereto as 
"Annexure C."

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Your company is commi�ed to providing a safe and secure working environment to its women employees and has in place the 
required Internal Commi�ee as envisaged in the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.

There were no cases of sexual harassment reported during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In terms of Regula�on 34(2)(e) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, a Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report is annexed hereto as "Annexure D.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is exempted from compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions under Regula�on 15 of SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements), Regula�ons 2015,since the Company's share capital and net worth, was less than the 
specified threshold as on the last day of the preceeding financial year.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Directors confirm that the Company has, during the year, complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The 
Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SECURITIES

The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form for all shareholders. 69.32% of the total number of 
shares and dematerialised as on 31st March, 2022. In�ma�ons have been sent to all shareholders holding shares in physical 
mode informing them that as per revised Regula�on 40 of SEBI(LODR) Regula�ons 2015, shares will be transferred only in 
dematerialised mode effec�ve from 1st April, 2019 and the shareholders have been requested to dematerialise their exis�ng 
shares in physical form. 
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The informa�on required pursuant to Sec�on 197 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, is annexed hereto as "Annexure E".

AUDITORS

M/s. KAMG & Associates, Chartered Accountants(Firm Reg. No. 311027E), were appointed Statutory Auditors of the Company in 
terms of Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, to hold office from 
the conclusion of the 38th  Annual General Mee�ng upto the conclusion of the 43rd Annual General Mee�ng.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed Messrs T. Cha�erjee & Associates, Company Secretaries (FRN No.- 
P2007WB067100), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year under review. 

The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as "Annexure F ".

MATERIAL CHANGES

There have been no material changes between the end of the Financial Year and the date of this Report.

AKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to place on record their grateful apprecia�on of the excellent support and co-opera�on received from the 
Shareholders, Banks, Financial Ins�tu�ons and Investors, Government Authori�es, Stock Exchanges, Reserve Bank of India, 
Central and State Governments. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep apprecia�on of the dedica�on, 
competence and support of the employees at all levels for their contribu�on towards the performance of your Company. 

VINAY KILLA         
(DIN : 00060906)                      
Independent Director        

ROHAN GHOSH
(DIN : 00032965)
Managing Director 

Place : Kolkata
Date :  May,  2022th25

For and on behalf of the Board
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SALIENT FEATURES OF THE POLICY RELATING TO 

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee cons�tuted by the Board of Directors of the Company adopted the Policy 
thRela�ng to Remunera�on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees, on 5  February, 2015, formulated in 

compliance with Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable Rules thereto and Clause 49 of the 
erstwhile Lis�ng Agreement.

IMPORTANT DEFINITIONS

“The Commi�ee” shall mean the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee

“Independent Director” shall mean a director referred to in Sec�on 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) shall mean (i) the Managing Director, (ii) Company Secretary, (iii) Whole-�me Director( in the 
absence of a Managing Director), (iv) Chief Financial Officer and (v) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

 “Remunera�on” shall mean any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes 
perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961. 

 “Senior Management” shall mean personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team excluding Board 
of Directors. This would include all members of management one level below the execu�ve directors, including all the func�onal 
heads. 

GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

The Policy ensures that the level and composi�on of remunera�on is reasonable and sufficient to a�ract, retain and mo�vate 
Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. Rela�onship of remunera�on to performance is clear and 
meets appropriate performance benchmarks.  

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS, KMPS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

Appointment criteria and qualifica�ons: 

1.  The appointment, tenure and remunera�on of Directors and KMPs shall be governed by the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereto (including any statutory modifica�ons and re enactments thereof for the �me being in force).

2. The Commi�ee shall iden�fy and ascertain the integrity, qualifica�on, exper�se and experience of the person for 
appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. 

3. The Commi�ee has discre�on to decide whether qualifica�on, exper�se and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / 
sa�sfactory for the concerned posi�on. 

Evalua�on of Performance: 

The Commi�ee shall carry out annually evalua�on of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management. 

Removal: 

Due to reasons of any disqualifica�on men�oned in the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder or under any other 
applicable Act, Rules and Regula�ons, the Commi�ee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in wri�ng, removal 
of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, Rules and Regula�ons.

Re�rement: 

The Directors, KMPs and Senior Management shall re�re as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discre�on to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management in the same 
posi�on / remunera�on or otherwise even a�er a�aining the re�rement age, for the benefit of the Company. 
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PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSON, KMP AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT 

General: 

1. The remunera�on / compensa�on / commission etc. to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be 
determined by the Commi�ee and recommended to the Board for approval. The remunera�on / compensa�on / commission 
etc. shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required. 

2. The remunera�on and commission to be paid to Managerial Person shall be as per the statutory provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder, for the �me being in force. 

3. Increments to the exis�ng remunera�on / compensa�on structure may be recommended by the Commi�ee to the Board 
which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managerial Persons. Increments will be effec�ve 
from the date of reappointment in respect of Managerial Person and 1st April in respect of other employees of the Company. 

4. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managerial Person, KMP and any other employees for 
indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall generally not be treated as part of the 
remunera�on payable to any such personnel. 

Remunera�on to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management: 

1. Fixed pay: 

Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly remunera�on as may be approved by the Board 
on the recommenda�on of the Commi�ee and in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the 
Rules made thereunder for the �me being in force.

 2. Minimum Remunera�on: 

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remunera�on to its 
Managerial Person in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Remunera�on to Non-Execu�ve / Independent Directors: 

1. Remunera�on: 

The remunera�on shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made 
thereunder for the �me being in force. 

2. Si�ng Fees: 

The Non- Execu�ve / Independent Directors may receive remunera�on by way of fees for a�ending mee�ngs of Board or 
Commi�ee thereof, not exceeding the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013. 

3. Limit of Remunera�on: 

Remunera�on may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net 
profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

4. Stock Op�ons: 

An Independent Director shall not be en�tled to any stock op�on of the Company. 

DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY 

Devia�ons on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the interests of the Company, 
will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in individual cases. 

The full text of the Policy Rela�ng to Remunera�on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees is available on 
the website of the Company at www.taiind.com.
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ANNEXURE B

Form for disclosure of par�culars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related par�es 
referred to in sub-sec�on (1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transac�ons 
under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons not at arm's length basis

 NOT APPLICABLE

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons at arm's length basis

Common Directors

Common Directors

Common Directors

Common Directors

Common Directors

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transac�ons 

© Dura�on of the contracts / arrangements/transac�ons 

Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Bhutan Fruit Products Private Limited

Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Limited (Purchase)

Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Limited (Sale)

Bhutan Silicon Metal Private Limited

Bhutan Ferro Alloys Limited

NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY NATURE OF RELATIONSHIP

Bhutan Fruit Products Private Limited

Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Limited

Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Limited

Bhutan Silicon Metal Private Limited

Bhutan Ferro Alloys Limited 

Tashi Metals Private Limited

NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY NATURE OF CONTRACT/AGREEMENT/TRANSACTIONS

Agency Agreement and Royalty Agreement

Purchase Agreement Sale 

Agreement Agency 

Agreement

Day to day transac�ons

Agency Agreement

Bhutan Fruit Products Private Limited

Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Limited

Bhutan Silicon Metal Private Limited

Bhutan Ferro Alloys Limited 

Tashi Metals Private Limited

NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY NATURE OF CONTRACT/AGREEMENT/TRANSACTIONS

Agreement: 01.01.2021 – 31.12.2023
Royalty Agreement: 01.04.2022 – 31.03.2025            

Carbide: 01.01.2018-31.12.2018
Ferro Silicon: 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2024

Agency agreement 01.01.2022 – 31.12.2024

Day to day transac�ons

Agency Agreement 01.06.2022 – 31.05.2025

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of rela�onship
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(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transac�ons including the value, if any 

Bhutan Fruit Products Private Limited (Purchase)

Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Limited (Purchase)

Tashi Metals Private Limited (Purchase)

Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Limited (Sale)

Bhutan Silicon Metal Private Limited (Sale)

Bhutan Ferro Alloys Limited (Sale)

Tashi Metals Private Limited (Sale)

NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY
TERMS OF THE CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR 

TRANSACTIONS INCLUDING THE VALUE (Rs in Lakhs.)

254.81

11,439.21

4,690.16

4,328.54

2,893.84

-

3,794.27

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board 

-

29.71

-

-

29.62

Bhutan Fruit Products Private Limited

Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Limited  

Bhutan Silicon Metal Private Limited

Bhutan Ferro Alloys Limited

NAME OF THE RELATED PARTY

ADVANCES TO THE REALTED PARTY

(as on 31.03.2022) (Rs. In Lakhs )

For and on behalf of the Board

�  VINAY KILLA ����
(DIN:00060906)���

        Independent Director����
Place : Kolkata

thDate : 25  May, 2022

ROHAN GHOSH

Managing Director�
(DIN: 00032965)���

31

th
39  Annual Report 2021-2022



1 BACKGROUND 

Sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, which has come into effect from 1st April, 2014, mandates that, every listed 
company is required to establish a vigil mechanism for the directors and employees, to report genuine concerns in such 
manner as may be prescribed. Such a vigil mechanism shall also provide for adequate safeguards against vic�miza�on of 
persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Commi�ee, in 
appropriate or excep�onal cases. 

The amended Clause 49 of the Lis�ng Agreement, which shall come into effect from 1st October, 2014, also provides for 
mandatory establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, 
actual or suspected fraud or viola�on. The mechanism is also required to provide for adequate safeguards against 
vic�misa�on of the directors/employees using the mechanism. (Clause 49, Sub -clause II (F)) 

Under these circumstances, Tai Industries Limited, being a Company listed with BSE and CSE, proposes to establish a Vigil 
Mechanism/ Whistle Blower mechanism and to formulate a policy for the same. 

2.  POLICY OBJECTIVES. 

 A Vigil mechanism shall provide a channel to the employees to report to the management concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or viola�on of the Code of Conduct or Service Rules of the Company. The mechanism 
shall also provide for adequate safeguards against vic�miza�on of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provide 
for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee in excep�onal cases. 

 This neither releases employees from their duty of confiden�ality in the course of their work nor can it be used as a route for 
raising malicious or unfounded allega�ons against people in authority and / or colleagues in general. 

3.  SCOPE OF THE POLICY. 

 This Policy covers malprac�ces and events which have taken place / suspected to have taken place, misuse or abuse of 
authority, fraud or suspected fraud, viola�on of Company’s rules, manipula�ons, negligence causing danger to public health 
and safety, misappropria�on of monies, and other ma�ers or ac�vity on account of which the interest of the Company is 
affected and formally reported by whistle blowers. 

4.  ELIGIBILITY 

 All Employees and directors of the Company are eligible to make Protected Disclosures under the Policy. The Protected 
Disclosures may be in rela�on to ma�ers concerning the Company. 

5. DISQUALIFICATIONS 

 a.  While it will be ensured that genuine Whistleblowers are accorded complete protec�on from any kind of unfair treatment  
as herein set out, any abuse of this protec�on will warrant disciplinary ac�on. 

 b.  Protec�on under this Policy would not mean protec�on from disciplinary ac�on arising out of false or bogus allega�ons  
made by a Whistleblower knowing it to be false or bogus or with a mala fide inten�on. 

 c.  Whistleblowers, who make three or more Protected Disclosures, which have been subsequently found to be mala fide, 
frivolous, baseless, malicious, or reported otherwise than in good faith, will be disqualified from repor�ng further 
Protected Disclosures under this Policy. In respect of such Whistleblowers, the Company/Audit Commi�ee would reserve 
its right to take/recommend appropriate disciplinary ac�on. 

6.  DEFINITIONS. 

 “Alleged wrongful conduct” shall mean viola�on of law, infringement of Company’s rules, misappropria�on of monies, 
actual or suspected fraud, substan�al and specific danger to public health and safety or abuse of authority. 

 “Audit Commi�ee” means a Commi�ee cons�tuted by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Lis�ng Agreement. 

 “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 “Company” means Tai Industries Limited and all its offices. 

 “Compliance Officer” shall mean the Compliance Office of the Company under the Lis�ng Agreement and shall mean an 
officer to receive protected disclosures from whistle blowers, maintaining records thereof, placing the same before the Audit 

 WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY. 
ANNEXURE-C
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Commi�ee for its disposal and informing the whistle blower the result thereof. 

 “Employee” means all the present employees and whole �me Directors of the Company. 

 “Protected Disclosure” means a concern raised by an employee or group of employees of the Company, through a wri�en 
communica�on and made in good faith which discloses or demonstrates informa�on about an unethical or improper ac�vity 
under the �tle “SCOPE OF THE POLICY” with respect to the Company. However, the Protected Disclosures should be factual 
and not specula�ve or in the nature of an interpreta�on / conclusion and should contain as much specific informa�on as 
possible to allow for proper assessment of the nature and extent of the concern. 

 “Subject” means a person or group of persons against or in rela�on to whom a Protected Disclosure is made or evidence 
gathered during the course of an inves�ga�on. 

 “Vigilance Officer” means an officer of the Company nominated by the Audit Commi�ee for conduc�ng appropriate 
inves�ga�on of the protected disclosure. 

 “Whistle Blower” is an employee or group of employees who make a Protected Disclosure under this Policy and also referred 
in this policy as complainant. 

7.  RECEIPT AND DISPOSAL OF PROTECTED DISCLOSURES.

 Protected Disclosures should be reported in wri�ng by the complainant as soon as possible a�er the whistle blower becomes 
aware of the same so as to ensure a clear understanding of the issues raised and should either be typed or wri�en in a legible 
handwri�ng in English. 

 The Protected Disclosure should be submi�ed in a closed and secured envelope and should be super scribed as “Protected 
disclosure under the vigil mechanism policy”. If the complaint is not super scribed and closed as men�oned above it will not 
be possible for the Audit Commi�ee to protect the complainant and the protected disclosure will be dealt with as if a normal 
disclosure. In order to protect iden�ty of the complainant, the Compliance officer will not issue any acknowledgement to the 
complainant and the complainants are advised not to write the name / address of the complainant on the envelope, nor to 
enter into any further correspondence with the nodal officer / audit commi�ee. The audit commi�ee assures that in case any 
further clarifica�on is required he will get in touch with the complainant.

 Anonymous / Pseudonymous disclosure shall not be entertained by the Compliance Officer. 

 The Protected Disclosure should be forwarded under a covering le�er signed by the complainant. The Compliance Officer/ 
MD / Chairman of Audit Commi�ee shall detach the covering le�er bearing the iden�ty of the whistle blower and process 
only the Protected Disclosure.

 All Protected Disclosures should be addressed to the Compliance Officer of the Company. The contact details of the 
Compliance Officer is as under:- 

 Address of Compliance Officer:

 Ms. Priyanka Mukherjee

 Company Secretary, 

 Tai Industries Limited, 

 53A, Mirza Ghalib Street, Kolkata 700016.

 Protected Disclosure against the Compliance Officer should be addressed to the Managing Director (MD) of the Company 
and the Protected Disclosure against the MD of the Company should be addressed to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee. 
The contact details of the MD and the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee are as under:

 Name and Address of MD 

 Mr. Rohan Ghosh 

 Tai Industries Limited, 

 53A, Mirza Ghalib Street, Kolkata 700016. 

 Name and Address of Chairman of Audit Commi�ee 

 Mr. Prem Sagar 

 Tai Industries Limited, 

 53A, Mirza Ghalib Street, Kolkata 700016. 

 On receipt of the protected disclosure the Compliance Officer / MD / Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee shall make a record of 
the Protected Disclosure and also ascertain from the complainant whether he was the person who made the protected 
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disclosure or not before referring the ma�er to the Audit Commi�ee of the Company for further appropriate inves�ga�on 
and needful ac�on. The record will include: 

 a) Brief facts;

 b) Whether the same Protected Disclosure was raised previously by anyone, and if so, the outcome thereof;

 c) Whether the same Protected Disclosure was raised previously on the same subject;

 d) Details of ac�ons taken by Compliance officer/ MD for processing the complaint.

 e) Findings of the Audit Commi�ee;

 f) The recommenda�ons of the Audit Commi�ee / other ac�on(s).

 The Audit Commi�ee if deems fit may call for further informa�on or par�culars from the complainant. 

8.  INVESTIGATION

 All protected disclosures under this policy will be recorded and thoroughly inves�gated. The Audit Commi�ee (AC) may 
inves�gate and may at its discre�on consider involving any other Officer of the Company including the Vigilance Officer of the 
Company for the purpose of inves�ga�on. 

 The decision to conduct an inves�ga�on taken by the Audit Commi�ee is by itself not an accusa�on and is to be treated as a 
neutral fact finding process. 

 Subject(s) will normally be informed in wri�ng of the allega�ons at the outset of a formal inves�ga�on and have 
opportuni�es for providing their inputs during the inves�ga�on. 

 Subject(s) shall have a duty to co-operate with the Audit Commi�ee or any of the Officers appointed by it in this regard to the 
extent that such coopera�on will not compromise self incrimina�on protec�ons available under the applicable laws. 

 Subject(s) have a responsibility not to interfere with the inves�ga�on. Evidence shall not be withheld, destroyed or tampered 
with and witness shall not be influenced, coached, threatened or in�midated by the subject(s). 

 Unless there are compelling reasons not to do so, subject(s) will be given the opportunity to respond to material findings 
contained in the inves�ga�on report. No allega�on of wrong doing against a subject(s) shall be considered as maintainable 
unless there is good evidence in support of the allega�on. 

 Subject(s) have a right to be informed of the outcome of the inves�ga�ons. 

9.  DECISION AND REPORTING

 The Audit Commi�ee along with its recommenda�ons will report its findings to the Managing Director through the 
Compliance Officer within 15 days of receipt of report for further ac�on as deemed fit. In case prima facie case exists against 
the subject, then the Managing Director shall forward the said report with its recommenda�on to the concerned disciplinary 
authority for further appropriate ac�on in this regard or shall close the ma�er, for which he shall record the reasons. Copy of 
above decision  shall be addressed to the Audit Commi�ee, the Compliance Officer, the Vigilance Officer, the complainant 
and the subject. 

 In case the subject is the Compliance officer of the Company, the protected disclosure shall be addressed to the Managing 
Director who, a�er examining the protected disclosure shall forward the ma�er to the audit commi�ee. The Audit 
Commi�ee a�er providing an opportunity to the subject to explain his posi�on and a�er comple�on of inves�ga�on shall 
submit a report along with its recommenda�on to the MD. A�er considering the report and recommenda�on as aforesaid, 
MD shall forward the said report with its recommenda�on to the concerned disciplinary authority for further appropriate 
ac�on in this regard or shall close the ma�er, for which he shall record the reasons. Copy of the above decision shall be 
addressed to the Audit Commi�ee, the Compliance Officer, the Vigilance Officer, the complainant and the subject. 

 In case the subject is the MD of the Company, the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee a�er examining the Protected Disclosure 
shall forward the Protected Disclosure to other members of the Audit Commi�ee if deemed fit. The Audit Commi�ee shall 
appropriately and expedi�ously inves�gate the Protected Disclosure. 

 If the report of inves�ga�on is not to the sa�sfac�on of the complainant, the complainant has the right to report the event to 
the appropriate legal or inves�ga�ng agency. 

 A complainant who makes false allega�ons of unethical & improper prac�ces or about wrongful conduct of the subject to the 
Compliance Office or the Audit Commi�ee shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary ac�on in accordance with the rules, 
procedures and policies of the Company. 
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10. SECRECY / CONFIDENTIALITY.

 The complainant, the Compliance Officer, the Vigilance Officer, Members of Audit commi�ee, the Subject and everybody 
involved in the process shall: 

 ▪  Maintain confiden�ality of all ma�ers under this Policy 

  ▪  Discuss only to the extent or with those persons as required under this policy for comple�ng the  process of inves�ga�ons. 

 ▪  Not keep the papers una�ended anywhere at any �me 

 ▪  Keep the electronic mails / files under password. 

11. PROTECTION.

 No unfair treatment will be meted out to a whistle blower by virtue of his/ her having reported a Protected Disclosure under 
this policy. The company, as a policy, condemns any kind of discrimina�on, harassment, vic�miza�on or any other unfair 
employment prac�ce being adopted against Whistle Blowers. Complete protec�on will, therefore, be given to Whistle 
Blowers against any unfair prac�ce like retalia�on, threat or in�mida�on of termina�on / suspension of service, disciplinary 
ac�on, transfer, demo�on, refusal of promo�on or the like, including any direct or indirect use of authority to obstruct the 
Whistle Blower’s right to con�nue to perform his du�es / func�ons including making further Protected Disclosure. The 
company will take steps to minimize difficul�es, which the Whistle Blower may experience as a result of making the 
Protected Disclosure. Thus if the Whistle Blower is required to give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the 
Company will arrange for the Whistle Blower to receive advice about the procedure etc. 

 A Whistle Blower may report any viola�on of the above clause to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee, who shall inves�gate 
the same and recommend suitable ac�on to the management. 

 The iden�ty of the Whistle Blower shall be kept confiden�al to the extent possible and permi�ed under law. The iden�ty of 
the complainant will not be revealed unless he himself has made either his details public or disclosed his iden�ty to any other 
office or authority. In the event of the iden�ty of the complainant being disclosed, the Audit Commi�ee is authorized to 
ini�ate appropriate ac�on as per extant regula�ons against the person or agency making such disclosure. The iden�ty of the 

 Whistleblower, if known, shall remain confiden�al to those persons directly involved in applying this policy, unless the issue 
requires inves�ga�on by law enforcement agencies, in which case members of the organiza�on are subject to subpoena. 

 Any other Employee assis�ng in the said inves�ga�on shall also be protected to the same extent as the Whistle Blower. 

 Provided however that the complainant before making a complaint has reasonable belief that an  issue exists and he has 
acted in good faith. Any complaint not made in good faith as assessed as such by the audit commi�ee shall be viewed 
seriously and the complainant shall be subject to disciplinary ac�on as per the Service Rules of the Company. This policy does 
not protect an employee from an adverse ac�on taken independent of his disclosure of unethical and improper prac�ce etc. 
unrelated to a disclosure made pursuant to this policy. 

12.  ACCESS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 The Whistle Blower shall have right to access Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee directly in excep�onal cases and the 
Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee is authorized to prescribe suitable direc�ons in this regard. 

13.  COMMUNICATION. 

 A whistleblower policy cannot be effec�ve unless it is properly communicated to employees. Employees shall be informed 
through by publishing in no�ce board and the web site of the company. 

14. RETENTION OF DOCUMENTS. 

 All Protected disclosures documented along with the results of Inves�ga�on rela�ng thereto, shall be retained by the 
Compliance Officer for a period of 5 (five) years or such other period as specified by any other law in force, whichever is more.

15. ADMINISTRATION AND REVIEW OF THE POLICY. 

 The Managing Director shall be responsible for the administra�on, interpreta�on, applica�on and review of this policy. The 
Managing Director also shall be empowered to bring about necessary changes to this Policy, if required at any stage with the  
concurrence of the Audit Commi�ee. 

16. ANNUAL AFFIRMATION. 

 The Company shall annually affirm that it has in place an adequate vigil mechanism policy and that it has provided protec�on 
to the complainant from unfair adverse personal ac�on. The affirma�on shall also form part of Corporate Governance report 
which is a�ached to the Annual report of the Company. 
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Para B of schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 s�pulates disclosure under 
specific heads which are given in the following paragraphs and which con�nue to be followed in the usual course of the 
Company's business over the years in discussions amongst the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Management 
Personnel.

(a)  I ndustry Structure and Developments

 Food Processing

 India boasts of one of the largest food processing industries in terms of produc�on, consump�on, export and growth 
prospects , providing an important synergy between agricultural produce and industries. The fruit and vegetable processing 
is equally divided between organised and unorganised sector in India.  Food processing has become an integral part of the 
food supply chain in the global economy, India being the second most populated country has one of the largest food 
processing industries in terms of produc�on, consump�on, export and growth prospects. It provides an important synergy 
between agricultural produce and industries. The propor�on of working women have been increasing con�nuously both in 
the urban and rural areas. As a result of their busy lifestyle, the amount of �me for household ac�vi�es such as cooking is 
declining. This is crea�ng a rising demand for processed and ready-to-eat foods.

 Charcoal and Ferro Silicon 

 Ferro Silicon is a major input in the prepara�on of alloys and special steel. Its growth is linked to the development of iron and 
steel & stainless steel industry.

 Due to the fall in prices the principals had high stock holding which helped us to sell larger quan��es in 2021 – 2022, thus the 
sharp increase.

 The demand for charcoal was high in 2021-2022 as compared to earlier year 2020– 2021. 

(b) Opportuni�es and threats 

 Food Processing

 India has one of the largest working popula�ons in the world. With increasing disposable incomes, this segment can be 
regarded as the biggest consumer of processed foods in the country. We expect this popula�on to grow con�nuously during 
the coming years.

 Gaps in the supply chain are perhaps the biggest challenge faced by this industry. Another big challenge is the dis�nct 
consumer preferences varying by each region.   Compe��on from imports of non- standardized processed foods and 
ingredients remains a challenge.  These complexi�es combined with change in consump�on pa�ern and increased 
compe��on pose a major challenge for Food Processing Industry.

 Charcoal and Ferro Silicon

 There is always a demand for quality material and our endeavor has always been to maintain high standard. We enjoy a 
strong brand and extensive all India reach.

 Market compe��on, erra�c supply, counterfeit material sold under the brand name “DRUK”, are the threats being faced by 
this division. 

 We have seen an unprecedented global breakout of the COVID-19 pandemic leading to a humanitarian crisis, lockdown 
across many countries and a significant economic fallout which has been largely disrup�ve. Notably India had also been 
witnessing a pre-pandemic slowdown, and the current pandemic has "magnified pre-exis�ng risks to the economic outlook".

(c) Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance

 The growth of the Fruit Product Division has not been significant during the year.

 The overall performance of industrial division was sa�sfactory during the year.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

ANNEXURE-D
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(d) O utlook

Your Company will con�nue to be alert and responsive to adapt to the trends and forces shaping our markets to secure 
compe��ve growth in these rapidly evolving �mes. Managing margins through judicious pricing and sustained efficiencies 
and cost saving will receive constant a�en�on.

(e) R    isks & Concerns

 Severe compe��on and weather condi�ons con�nue to govern demand and therefore results.

 Vital areas of concern are the transport system for movement of goods from warehouses to the distributors and the 
dependence on IT sector for solu�ons that help automate and integrate the transac�onal and control system.

 The most significant emerging risk is the ongoing outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19). These are challenging �mes 
for the world at large. The outbreak of COVID-19 and its rapid accelera�on across the globe are concerning.

 We are focussing on the long-term health of the business by judiciously reviewing cash flows and realloca�ng spends with 
rigorous discipline.

 There are many unknowns today and hence, the near-term outlook is extremely uncertain.

 Our Supply Chain network is exposed to poten�ally adverse events such as transporta�on disrup�ons, changes in the legal 
environment, which could impact our deliver ability of our orders to our customers and cost of our product.

 Our Distribu�on teams are working �relessly to keep our distribu�on ongoing so that our consumers have uninterrupted 
access to our products

(f) I nternal Control  Systems & their Adequacy

 The statutory requirements of the Audit Commi�ee are being met. In mee�ngs of the Audit Commi�ee, the Statutory 
Auditors and Partners of Internal Audit Firms par�cipate. Such Internal Auditors also periodically visit various divisions of the 
Company.

 Ac�vi�es of each sector are being programmed on a quarterly basis, which get translated into an Annual Ac�vity Plan. Each 
departmental head is involved in the prepara�on of the ac�vity plans and iden�fying and categorising the areas of risks, 
which are closely monitored. Such documenta�on therea�er undergo a further layer of scru�ny and implementa�on under 
direct superintendence of the Managing Director of the Company.

(g) Financial  & Opera�onal Performances

 This has been adequately stated in the Directors' Report.

(h) Material Developments in Human Resources  Industrial Rela�ons  Front

 Industrial Rela�ons remained cordial throughout the year. Your Company strongly believes that its intrinsic strength lies in 
the quality of its pool of dedicated and mo�vated employees.

 The total number of permanent employees in the payroll of the Company is 62.

 The human impact of this crisis takes precedence for us. Our utmost priority has been health, safety and well-being of the 
employees. We have been proac�ve and swi� in ensuring safe working condi�ons, strict standards of social distancing, 
necessary sanita�on measures across all our opera�ons. 
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ANNEXURE-E

Informa�on as required under Sec�ons 134(3)(q) and 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 
stthe Companies (Appointment & Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31  

March, 2022

The ra�o of the remunera�on of each Director to the median of 
remunera�on of employees of the Company for the Financial Year.

The percentage increase in remunera�on of each Director, Chief 
Execu�ve Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the 
Financial Year.

The percentage increase in median remunera�on of employees in 
the Financial Year.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company

a) A verage percentage increase already made in salaries of 
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
Financial Year

b) Its comparison with the percentage increase in the managerial 
remunera�on

c) Jus�fica�on thereof and point out if there are any excep�onal 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remunera�on

Affirma�on that the remunera�on is as per the remunera�on policy 
of the Company

Mr. Dasho Wangchuk Dorji- 10.46:1

Mr. Rohan Ghosh-10.01:1

Mr. Prem Sagar-0.32:1

Mr. K.N.Malhotra-0.32:1

Mr. Vinay Killa-0.32:1

Ms. Sarada Hariharan-0.16:1

Mr. Dasho Topgyal Dorji 0.12:1

Directors:

 Mr. Dasho Wangchuk Dorji-(-)3.88%

 Mr. Rohan Ghosh-(-)3.22%

 Mr. Prem Sagar-(-)11.11%

 Mr. K.N.Malhotra-14.29%

 Mr. Vinay Killa-(-)11.11%

 Ms. Sarada Hariharan-(-)20.00%

 Mr. Dasho Topgyal Dorji-(-)25.00%

Mrs. Mou Mukherjee, CFO-(-)1.76%

Ms. Priyanka Mukherjee, CS-122.22%

(-)11.53%

62

(-)1.66%

(-)17.10:1

Increase in remunera�on is as per the 
service agreement as approved by the 
Central Government.

Yes
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To,

The Members 

TAI Industries Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate prac�ces by TAI Industries Limited, CIN- L01222WB1983PLC059695 (hereina�er called the company). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on verifica�on of the books, papers, minute books, forms ,  returns filed and other records maintained by the company,  

informa�on provided by the Company, its officers  (including RTA), agents and authorized representa�ves, electronic records 

available in the official portal of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs www.mca.gov.in , portal of the Stock Exchanges, representa�on 

made by the Management and considering relaxa�ons granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securi�es and Exchange 

Board of India on account of ongoing global pandemic Novel Coronavirus (COVID 19),  we hereby report that in our opinion, the 

company has, during the  audit period covering financial year ended on 31st March 2022, complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 

the manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed with the stock exchange, in the official portal of the 

ministry of corporate affairs (MCA) etc. and other records maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31st March 

2022, according to the applicable provisions of:

 I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

 II. The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

 III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

 IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (not applicable to the Company during 
the audit period)  

 V. The following Regula�ons and Guidelines, as amended from �me to �me, prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the company; 

  a. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011;

  b. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015; 

  c. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018; (not 
applicable to the Company during audit period)

  d. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Non-Conver�ble Securi�es) Regula�on, 2021; (not 
applicable to the Company during audit period)

  e. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula�ons, 1993; 

  f. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regula�on, 2014. ( not applicable to the 
company during audit period)

  g. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons , 2009 ; ( not applicable to the 
Company during audit period)

  h. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons 2018; (not applicable to the Company 
during audit period)

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORM MR-3 

(For the financial year ended March 31, 2022) 
[Pursuant to sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

ANNEXURE F
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  i. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015;

  j. The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Par�cipants) Regula�ons, 2018.

 VI. The Management of the Company represented that fiscal, labour and environmental laws and other Statutes which are 
applicable to such type of companies, are generally complied with which inter-alia includes the followings which are 
specifically applicable to the company: 

  (a) Shops and Establishment Act, 1953;

  (b) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Rules made thereunder; 

  (c) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948; 

  (d) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

  (e) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

  (f) The standards of Weights and Measures (Enforcement) Act' 1985 

  (g) Food Safety and Standards Act' 2006

  (h) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Industrial and Labour Laws.

   The management represented us in wri�ng that no prosecu�on, ac�on was taken against the Company and or its 
directors and employees during the audit period         

 VII. We have also examined compliance of the applicable clauses of the following: 

 a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board Mee�ng (SS-1) and 
General Mee�ngs (SS-2). 

 b. The Lis�ng Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and the Calcu�a Stock Exchange Limited, read 
with the provisions of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, 
Standards, Lis�ng Agreements etc. men�oned above, except the following:

Regula�on 31(2) of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�on & Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015; 
require hundred percent of shareholding of promoter(s) and promoter group in dematerialized form, we report that 1216000 
Equity shares of the company held by the promoters in physical form which are exempted under SEBI Circular 
No.SEBI/CIR/ISD/1/2012 dated March 30, 2012, Clause 3( c) in arriving at compliance with 100% Promoters holding in demat 
form.  

We report that: 

The Company had made an applica�on pursuant to Sec�on 196 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
appointment of Mr. Wangchuk Dasho Dorji as Whole-�me Director of the Company to the Central Government for its approval 
under SRN:R12941217, dated 14th November 2019 , the approval for the appointment has been granted by the Central 
Government  on 9th May 2022.

We further report that:

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve Directors, Non-Execu�ve 
Directors and Independent Directors. There were no  changes in the composi�on of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review.

b) Adequate no�ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the 
agenda items before the mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng.

c) The dissen�ng views of the members of the Board of Directors and Commi�ees thereof were captured and minuted 
whenever arises. However. No such case has arisen during the period under review.

We report that during the period under review, the Board mee�ngs were conducted through video conferencing and adequate 
facili�es are used to facilitate the Directors at other loca�ons to par�cipate in the mee�ng. 
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and opera�ons of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, no events occurred which had bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of 
the above referred laws, rules, regula�ons, guidelines, standard etc. 

Place: Kolkata  For  T. Cha�erjee & Associates

Date: 25�� M�� 2022  Prac�cing Company Secretaries         

     FRN No. - P2007WB067100

    Binita Pandey - Partner 

           ACS : 41594, CP : 19730

    UDIN: A041594D000388281
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                                                                                                                                                'Annexure A

To,                                       

The Members of 

TAI  Industries Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this le�er.

 1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

 2. We have followed the Guidance Notes on ICSI Audi�ng Standard, audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifica�on was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and prac�ces, 
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 3. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representa�on about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regula�ons and happening of events etc. 

 4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, standards is the 
responsibility of management.  Our examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of procedures on test basis.

 5. The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effec�veness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata  For  T. Cha�erjee & Associates

Date: 25��May, 2022  Prac�cing Company Secretaries         

     FRN No. - P2007WB067100

    Binita Pandey - Partner 

           ACS : 41594, CP : 19730

    UDIN: A041594D000388281

THIS REPORT IS TO BE READ WITH OUR LETTER OF EVEN DATE WHICH IS 
ANNEXED AS ANNEXURE A AND FORMS AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS REPORT
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Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of TAI INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the "Company"), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant 
accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as the "standalone financial statements").

 In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the  financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng ("SA"s) specified under 
sec�on 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibili�es for 
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit Ma�ers 

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers. We have 
determined the ma�ers described below to be the key audit ma�ers to be communicated in our report. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

 Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Other Current Assets in Note 12 of the financial 

statements include 'Other Advances' which include 

advances given to certain en��es ( comprising  advances 

to  four separate en��es ) aggrega�ng Rs 3,45,33,501 as 

on repor�ng date which are lying unadjusted in the books 

for more than 3 years. The chances of recoverability of 

these balances seem to be remote. The management 

should consider for quan�fying the expected credit loss 

allowances in the financial statements for each of the 

advances given. Furthermore, the expecta�on that these 

balances are to be adjusted within one year from the 

repor�ng date is unfounded and accordingly based on 

past trends the balances should be classified as non-

current. 

We have observed from the  system derived ledger 

abstracts the past trends and have found that the 

balances are accumula�ng over the years instead of 

ge�ng adjusted.

We have also sought for external confirma�on of these 

balances and requested the management to explain the 

reason for which these balances are lying unadjusted for 

such a long �me in the books of account of the Company. 

Key Audit Ma�ers Advances Auditor's Response Principal audit procedures adopted
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Key Audit Ma�ers Advances Auditor's Response Principal audit procedures adopted

Advances – under sub judice  

Advances recoverable include Rs 7,42,37,148 on account 

of Tai Projects Private Limited, incorporated with an 

object of se�ng up a Family Entertainment Complex at 

Nonadanga in Eastern Metropolitan Bypass, Kolkata in 

pursuance of a decision to make investment in the said 

company. The said advance is lying sta�c against which a 

credit balance exists with very slow movement recorded 

over the decades. The Company is yet to obtain physical 

possession of the complex and had ini�ated legal 

proceedings against KMDA which is presently pending 

disposal before the Calcu�a High Court as disclosed in 

Note 35.2 to the Financial Statements  

Possibili�es of realiza�on of the said balance presently 

appear to be remote as the ma�er is pending in the 

Courts of Law for more than two decades and with the 

passage of �me the ques�on of recoverability of this 

material debit balance in the books is quite per�nent and 

opportune.

Receivables

Substan�al receivables [ Rs 40 lacs ] rela�ng to Fruit 

Products Division seem unrealizable as these include 

some balances which are under li�ga�on and are non-

moving. Accordingly the same should be segregated as 

Receivables - Disputed under the sub-head 'Doub�ul'. 

The management needs to assess the realisability of 

these receivables  

External Confirma�on [ SA 505 issued by ICAI ] of 

balances from Receivables under li�ga�on were also not 

available.

We have enquired about the progress of the legal 

proceedings ini�ated against the KMDA which is 

presently pending disposal before the Calcu�a High 

Court as we observe almost no movement in the balance 

over the years. 

Audit procedures adopted

We have obtained from the management the detailed 

summary of the party-wise receivables rela�ng to Fruit 

Products Division as on the repor�ng date and have 

compared the balances with the summary of receivables 

as on the last Balance Sheet date in order to arrive at the 

posi�on of the old receivables lying sta�c and under 

dispute lying in the Courts of Law as on the repor�ng 

date.

 

Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of ZDirectors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on 
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Informa�on, but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the  financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connec�on with our audit of the  financial statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management's Responsibili�es for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance, including 
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds 
and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and 
presenta�on of the  financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process. 

Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements

 Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scep�cism throughout the audit. 

We also:

 o  Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal 
control.

 o Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such 
controls.

 o  Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

 o  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern. 

o  Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on. 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the 
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the financial statements. We 
communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
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regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the ma�ers communicated with those 
charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or 
regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

  a)  We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examina�on of those books.

  c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Sec�on 133 of the 
Act.

  e)  On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Sec�on 164(2) of the Act.

  f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company and the opera�ng 
effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng.

  g)  With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of sec�on 
197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given 
to us, the remunera�on paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
sec�on 197 of the Act. 

 h)  With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the 
explana�ons given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its financial statements.

  ii. The Company has no material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts.

  iii. There are no  amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by the Company.

 iv. (a)  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or en�ty, including foreign 
en�ty ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Company ("Ul�mate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ul�mate Beneficiaries; 

  (b)  The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or en�ty, including foreign 
en�ty ("Funding Par�es"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ul�mate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ul�mate Beneficiaries; 
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  (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 

has come to our no�ce that has caused us to believe that the representa�ons under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

  v.  There has been no declara�on of dividend by the Company during the year.

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
 Chartered Accountants

 (Firm's Registra�on No. 311027E)

 Anjan Sircar 
Partner 

                                                                                                                                                                             (Membership No. 050052) 
UDIN:22050052AJ0GTM3245 

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25�� May, 2022
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

 (Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report

To the Members of TAI INDUSTRIES LIMITED of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng under Clause (i) of subsec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act")

 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of TAI INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the "Company") as of 

March 31, 2022 in conjunc�on with our audit of the standalone Ind AS fin/ancial statements of the Company for the year ended 

on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). These responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required 

under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Repor�ng (the "Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Audi�ng prescribed under Sec�on 143(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effec�vely in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng 

effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

 A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies 

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as 

necessary to permit prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisa�ons of management and directors 

of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, 

use, or disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
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projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk 

that the internal financial control over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the 

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over 
financial repor�ng established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the ICAI.

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
 Chartered Accountants

 (Firm's Registra�on No. 311027E)

 Anjan Sircar 
Partner 

                                                                                                                                                                             (Membership No. 050052) 
UDIN:22050052AJ0GTM3245 

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 25, 2022
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report 

to the Members of TAI INDUSTRIES LIMITED of even date)

To the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons provided to us by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

 i.  In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

 (a)  (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of 
Property, Plant and Equipment.

  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of intangible assets.

 (b) The Company has a program of physical verifica�on of Property, Plant and Equipment so as to cover all the assets once 
every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verifica�on during the year and 
were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, 
no material discrepancies were no�ced on such verifica�on.

 (c)  Based on our examina�on of the property tax receipts  on which building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer 
deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the �tle deeds of all other immovable proper�es, disclosed in the 
financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the 
balance sheet date.

 (d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year.

 (e) No proceedings have been ini�ated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding 
any benami property under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder.

 ii.  (a)  The management has conducted physical verifica�on of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and no 
material discrepancies were no�ced on such physical verifica�on. 

  (b)  The Company has not been sanc�oned working capital limits in excess of ? 5 crore, in aggregate, at any point of �me 
during the year, from banks or financial ins�tu�ons on the basis of security of current assets and hence repor�ng under 
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

 iii.  As per informa�on and explana�ons provided by the management the Company has not made investments in companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships during the year. Regarding gran�ng of loans or advances during the year the following 
may be noted:

 (a) The Company has provided advances but has neither given guarantee, nor provided security to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other en�ty during the year.

 (b) In respect of advances granted by the Company to par�es other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, there 
are overdue amounts as follows, remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date:

   Opening balance of advances    Rs. 3,37,30,518.66

   Advances made during the year  Rs.      8,02,983.00

   Balance outstanding at year end  Rs. 3,45,33,501.66

 (c)  As per informa�on and explana�ons provided by the management, no loan granted by the Company which has fallen due 
during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to se�le the overdues of exis�ng loans given to the 
same par�es. 

iv.  The Company has complied with the provisions of Sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans 
granted, investments made and guarantees and securi�es provided, as applicable.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, repor�ng under clause 3(v) 
of the Order is not applicable.
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vi.  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under subsec�on (1) of sec�on 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for the business ac�vi�es carried out by the Company. Hence, repor�ng under clause (vi) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 

 (a)  In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and 
Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of 
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authori�es. There 
were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory 
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

  (b)  There were no dues of  Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Customs Duty and Cess as on the last 
day of the financial year concerned which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. There were no transac�ons rela�ng to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

 ix. (a)  The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence repor�ng under clause 3(ix)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable.

 (b)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or government or any 
government authority. 

 (c)  The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the 
year and hence, repor�ng under clause 3(ix)© of the Order is not applicable.

 (d)  On an overall examina�on of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not   raised funds on short term 
and hence repor�ng on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

 (e)  On an overall examina�on of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any 
en�ty or person on account of or to meet the obliga�ons of its related companies.

  (f)  The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence repor�ng on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not  
applicable.

x.  (a)  The Company has not raised moneys by way of ini�al public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year and hence repor�ng under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

  (b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares or conver�ble 
debentures (fully or partly or op�onally) and hence repor�ng under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi.  (a)  No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been no�ced or reported during the year.

  (b)  No report under sub-sec�on (12) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of 
this report.

  (c)  We have taken into considera�on the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the 
date of this report), while determining the nature, �ming and extent of our audit procedures. 

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence repor�ng under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Sec�on 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to 
applicable transac�ons with the related par�es and the details of related party transac�ons have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accoun�ng standards.

xiv.(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its 
business. 

 (b)  We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and �ll 
date, in determining the nature, �ming and extent of our audit procedures.
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xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transac�ons with its Directors or persons 
connected with its directors and hence provisions of sec�on 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company.

xvi. (a)  In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Hence, repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable.

  (b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies 
(Reserve Bank) Direc�ons, 2016) and accordingly repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

xix. On the basis of the financial ra�os, ageing and expected dates of realisa�on of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabili�es, other informa�on accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence suppor�ng the assump�ons, nothing has come to our 
a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indica�ng that 
Company is not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

 xx. (a) The provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable as the Company is yet to a�ain the required 
amount of net worth, turnover or net profit as specified in Sec�on 135 and accordingly repor�ng under clause 3(xx ) is not 
applicable. 

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
 Chartered Accountants

 (Firm's Registra�on No. 311027E)

 Anjan Sircar 
Partner 

                                                                                                                                                                             (Membership No. 050052) 
UDIN: UDIN:22050052AJ0GTM3245  

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 25, 2022
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

ASSETS    
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4 37.37  26.93
INTANGIBLE ASSETS  17.00  29.65
FINANCIAL ASSETS  -     
(i) Investments 5 433.70  340.69
(ii) Others Non-current Financial Assets 6 347.41  315.38
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) 18 32.45  8.49
OTHERS NON CURRENT ASSETS 7  0.43  4.77
  868.36  725.91
 -    
CURRENT ASSETS -    
INVENTORIES 8 315.17  72.23
FINANCIAL ASSETS -     
(i)  Trade Receivables 9 3,462.80  3064.08
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 187.39  288.76
(iii) Other Bank Balances  11 74.96  40.29
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) 13 235.82  95.73
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 12 1,559.09  1293.84
  5,835.23  4,854.94
Assets held for sale 14 8.90  9.95
  -     
  5,844.13  4,864.89
   -     
TOTAL  6,712.49  5590.80
   -   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  -
EQUITY  -   
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 15 600.00  600.00
OTHER EQUITY 16 1,660.87  1176.13
  2,260.87  1776.13
  -   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  -    
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  -    
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION 17 80.07  63.25
  80.07  63.25
  -    
CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   -
(I) Trade Payables 19 3,000.12  2628.38
     (A) Total Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small   -  
     enterprises--8629337/-  
     (B) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro 
     enterprises and small enterprises--291382094/- -   
(ii)  Other Financial Liabili�es 20 59.42  76.40
  -     
 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 21 1,039.37  955.36
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 22 243.00  62.71
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION 23 29.64  28.57
   4,371.55  3,751.42
  -     
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  6,712.49  5,590.80

PARTICULARS
Ind AS

31st March, 2022
Ind AS

31st March, 2021NOTE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 1-46   
This is the Balance Sheet referred to our report of even date    
For KAMG & ASSOCIATES         
Chartered Accountants    
Firm's Registra�on No. 311027E     

VINAY KILLA
 Director (DIN : 00060906)

ROHAN GHOSH
Managing Director (DIN : 00032965)

PRIYANKA MUKHERJEE
Company Secretary, Membership No.A- 29620

MOU MUKHERJEE
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board

ANJAN SIRCAR
Partner
Membership No. 050052

Place : Kolkata
Date : 25.05.2022
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March 2022 Amount in Lakhs

PARTICULARS
Ind AS

31st March, 2022
Ind AS

31st March, 2021NOTE

INCOME   
       REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 24  30,082.43   18,602.06 
       OTHER INCOME 25  103.75   1,021.91 
  TOTAL REVENUE   30,186.18   19,623.97 
          
  EXPENSES         
       PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE 26  28,035.33   17,274.13 
      CHANGES IN INVENTORIES & STOCK - IN- TRADE 27  (242.93)  165.93 
       EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 28  287.85   290.97 
       FINANCE COSTS 29  0.28     
       DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 30  27.07   24.24 
       OTHER EXPENSES 31  1,491.32   1,575.98 
 
 TOTAL EXPENSES   29,598.92   19,331.25 
 PROFIT  BEFORE  EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS  AND TAX    587.26   292.72 
      EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS - PROFIT / (LOSS)       11.55 
 PROFIT BEFORE  TAX   587.26   304.27 
 TAX EXPENSES          
      CURRENT TAX 32  180.29   62.50 
      TAX ADJUSTMENT FOR EARLIER YEARS   26.80   (28.54)
      DEFERRED TAX   (32.18)  (3.17)
 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR   412.35   273.48 
    
 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   
 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   
          - Remeasurnment  of Post-employment benefit obliga�ons   (9.68)  (3.16)
          - Change in Equity Instruments - Fair Value through Other
                   Comprehensive Income"  90.29   78.29 
       Income tax rela�ng to these items       
                      1) Current Tax      
                      2) Deferred Tax   (8.22)  (8.19)
 Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax  72.39   66.94 
          
 Total Comprehensive Income for the year  484.74   340.42 
    
 Earnings per equity share    
 (1) Basic earnings per share   6.87   4.56 
 (2) Diluted earnings per share  6.87   4.56  

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registra�on No. 311027E

Place : Kolkata
Date : 25.05.2022

VINAY KILLA
 Director

(DIN : 00060906)

ROHAN GHOSH
Managing Director
(DIN : 00032965)

PRIYANKA MUKHERJEE
Company Secretary

Membership No.A- 29620
MOU MUKHERJEE

Chief Financial Officer

 For and on behalf of the Board

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements     1-46

ANJAN SIRCAR
Partner
Membership No. 050052
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Statement of Cash Flows  (Indirect Method)for the  Year ended 31st March, 2022
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
Year ended 

31st March, 2021Par�culars

Cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es  

Profit before income tax  587.26   292.72 

Adjustments for:        

 Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense  27.07   24.24 

 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  1.98   0.02 

 Provisions Wri�en Back  (1.07)  (741.02)

 Debts and Advances wri�en off  47.74   739.50 

 Interest income classified as inves�ng cash flows  (21.16)  (17.21)

 Dividend income classified as inves�ng cash flows  (51.20)  (244.79)

 Finance costs  0.29     

 Provision for doub�ul advances        

Change in opera�ng assets and liabili�es        

 (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (446.46)  (2,358.75)

 (Increase)/Decrease inventories  (242.93)  165.93 

 (Increase)/ Decrease  in other financial assets  (30.27)  (99.87)

 (Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets  4.34     

 (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets  (292.06)  1,234.87 

 Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  372.81   1,141.95 

 Increase/ (Decrease) in employee benefit obliga�ons  8.21   (20.46)

 Increase/(Decrease)  in other financial liabili�es  (16.97)  (1.97)

 Increase/(Decrease)  in Short term provision      (3.96)

 Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabili�es  84.01   (513.88)

Cash generated from opera�ons  31.57   (402.67)

 Income taxes paid (net of refund)  (140.08)  (42.32)

Net cash inflow/(ou�low) from opera�ng ac�vi�es  (108.51)  (444.99)

     

Cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es     

 Payments for property, plant and equipment  (26.33)  (1.58)

 (Purchase)/Sale of Investments  (2.72)  (0.91)

 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  0.55   0.01 

 Changes in Other bank balances  (34.67)  0.01 

 Interest received  19.40   7.24 

 Dividend received  51.20   244.79 

Net cash inflow/(ou�low) from inves�ng ac�vi�es  7.43   249.56 

  

Cash flows from financing ac�vi�es  

Proceeds from borrowings:  

 Term Loan  

 Cash Credit  

 Others   

Repayment of borrowings:  

 Term Loan  

 Interest paid  (0.29) 

 Dividends paid (including dividend tax)     

Net cash inflow (ou�low) from financing ac�vi�es  (0.29) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (101.37)  (195.43)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  288.76   484.19 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  187.39   288.76 
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Notes : 

1.  The above Cash Flow Statement has been compiled from and is based on the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2022 and the 
related Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date.

2.  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under as set out in the Indian Accoun�ng Standard 7 (IND AS-7) on 
Statement of Cash Flows.

3.  Cash and Cash equivalents represent Cash and Bank balances

4. Addi�ons to Fixed Assets are stated inclusive of movements of Capital Work-in-Progress between the beginning and the end 
of the year and are treated as part of Inves�ng Ac�vi�es.

5.   Figures in parenthesis represent ou�lows.

6.  Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to conform current year's presenta�on.

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registra�on No. 311027E

Place : Kolkata
Date : 25.05.2022

VINAY KILLA
 Director

(DIN : 00060906)

ROHAN GHOSH
Managing Director
(DIN : 00032965)

PRIYANKA MUKHERJEE
Company Secretary

Membership No.A- 29620
MOU MUKHERJEE

Chief Financial Officer

 For and on behalf of the Board

ANJAN SIRCAR
Partner
Membership No. 050052
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This is the Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.



Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Capital Reserve General Reserve
Retained
earnings
(Surplus)

Other 
Comprehensive

Income 

Total

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

Balance at April 01, 2020 NIL  5.95   38.79   641.91   149.06   835.71 

Profit for the year     273.48       273.48 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax         66.94   66.94 

Total  comprehensive income for the year   -     -     273.48   66.94   340.42 

Alloca�ons/Appropria�ons:      

Final Dividend paid for the year 2016-17      -     

Dividend distribu�on tax      -     

   -     -     -     

Balance as at March 31, 2021 NIL  5.95   38.79   915.38   216.01   1,176.13

Balance at April 01, 2021 NIL  5.95   38.79   915.38   216.01   1,176.13

Profit for the year     412.35    412.35 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax     72.39   72.39 

Total  comprehensive income for the year   -     -     412.35   72.39   484.74 

Alloca�ons/Appropria�ons:

Balance as at March 31, 2022 NIL  5.95   38.79   1,327.73   288.40   1,660.87 

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registra�on No. 311027E

VINAY KILLA
 Director

(DIN : 00060906)

ROHAN GHOSH
Managing Director
(DIN : 00032965)

PRIYANKA MUKHERJEE
Company Secretary

Membership No.A- 29620
MOU MUKHERJEE

Chief Financial Officer

 For and on behalf of the Board

Security Reserve

Place : Kolkata
Date : 25.05.2022

ANJAN SIRCAR
Partner
Membership No. 050052

A. Equity share capital      
Current Repor�ng Period-FY21-22    

Balance at the beginning of the current repor�ng 
period 

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due 
to prior period 
crrors 

Restated balance 
at the beginning of 
the current 
repor�ng period 

Changes in Equity 
Share capital during 
the current year 

Balance at the end 
of the current 
repor�ng period 

600.00 600.00NIL NIL NIL

Previous Repor�ng Period-FY20-21

Balance at the beginning of the current repor�ng 
period 

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due 
to prior period 
crrors 

Restated balance 
at the beginning of 
the current 
repor�ng period 

Changes in Equity 
Share capital during 
the current year 

Balance at the end 
of the current 
repor�ng period 

600.00 600.00NIL NIL NIL
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NOTE: There is no Share Applica�on money pending allotment and no equity component of compound Financial Instrument which is to be disclosed 
separately under "Other Equity"

Amount in Lakhs

Amount in Lakhs



GENERAL INFORMATION

Tai Industries Limited (‘the Company”) is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in trading , marke�ng and distribu�on and retailing, in India, of "DRUK" brand of 
fruit products such as squashes, jam, fruit juices , pickles, ketchup, etc. The Company also carries on trading and marke�ng of 
industrial and mineral products and raw materials such as calcium carbide, charcoal, manganese ore, etc.

COVID-19

We were in the midst of the most tumultous �me that the world had witnessed in over a century. The pandemic caused due to 
COVID 19 had adversely affected every sphere of our living and most importantly the economic scenario in a developing 
economy as ours. During April and May 2021 the second phase of the Pandemic developed formidably into a global crisis, forcing 
the Governments to enforce lock-downs of all economic ac�vity. For the Company, the focus immediately shi�ed to ensuring the 
health and well-being of all employees, and on minimizing disrup�on to services for all our customers. It is indeed heartening 
that the situa�on all over the world has improved considerably though the apprehensions and fear psychosis will take �me to be 
eradicated from minds of people across the globe.

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accoun�ng policies adopted in the prepara�on of these separate financial statements 
of the Company. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) BASIS OF PREPARATION

 (i)  Compliance with Ind AS

  The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standard) 
Rules, 2015 under the historical cost conven�on as a going concern on an accrual basis expect for certain financial 
instruments which are measured at fair value. The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared 
earlier in accordance with the accoun�ng standards no�fied under the Companies (Accoun�ng Standard) Rules, 2006 (as 
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

  (ii)  Historical cost conven�on

  The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

  – equity investments in en��es other than subsidiary, joint ventures and associate which are measured at fair value;

  – Certain financial assets and liabili�es that are measured at fair value;

  – defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value.

  (iii) Use of es�mates

  In preparing the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, management is 
required to make judgements, es�mates and assump�ons that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es 
and the disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es as at the date of financial statements and the amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reported period. The es�mates and assump�ons used in the accompanying financial statements are 
based upon management's evalua�on of facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statement. Actual results 
could differ from those es�mates. Es�mates and underlying assump�on are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision 
to such es�mates is recognised in the period the same is determined.

(b) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less deprecia�on. Historical Cost represents direct expenses 
incurred on acquisi�on of the assets and the share of indirect expenses rela�ng to acquisi�on allocated in propor�on to the 
direct cost involved. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the 
repor�ng period in which they are incurred.

Notes to The Financial Statements
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 Deprecia�on methods, es�mated useful lives and residual value

 Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment is provided on ‘Wri�en Down Value Method’ based on useful life as 
prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the 
asset. The assets’residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each repor�ng 
period. 

 Derecogni�on

 The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

(c) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 Measurement at recogni�on:

 Intangible Assets are stated at acquisi�on cost, net of accumulated amor�sa�on and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Intangible assets are amor�sed on a straight line basis over their es�mated useful lives. The amor�sa�on period and the 
amor�sa�on method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly 
different from previous es�mates, the amor�sa�on period is changed accordingly.

 Costs associated with maintaining so�ware programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs that 
are directly a�ributable to the design and tes�ng of iden�fiable and unique so�ware products controlled by the Company 
are recognised as intangible assets when it is technically feasible to complete the so�ware so that it will be available for use, 
management intends to complete the so�ware and use or sell it, there is an ability to use or sell the so�ware, it can be 
demonstrated how the so�ware will generate probable future economic benefits, adequate technical, financial and other 
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the so�ware are available, and the expenditure a�ributable to the 
so�ware during its development can be reliably measured. Directly a�ributable costs that are capitalised as part of the 
so�ware include employee costs and an appropriate por�on of relevant overheads.

 Derecogni�on:

 The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from the re�rement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one en�ty and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another en�ty.

 (I) FINANCIAL ASSETS:

 (A) Classifica�on:

  The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amor�sed cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of its business model for managing 
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteris�cs of the financial asset.

 (B)  Ini�al recogni�on and measurement:

  A financial asset is classified as measured at

  —  Amor�sed Cost;

  —   FVOCI — debt investment;

  —   FVOCI - equity investment; or —   FVTPL

  All financial assets are recognised ini�ally at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at FVTPL, 
transac�on costs that are a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that 
require delivery of assets within a �me frame established by regula�on or conven�on in the market place (regular way 
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

  Debt investment:

  A 'debt investment' is measured at the amor�sed cost if both the following condi�ons are met:

  a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold assets for collec�ng contractual cash flows, and 
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  b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

  A�er  ini�al  measurement,  such  financial  assets  are  subsequently  measured  at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amor�sed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amor�sa�on is included in finance income in the profit or loss. Debt 
investment included within the fair value through profit and loss  (FVTPL) category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

 Equity investment:

 The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in companies other than equity investments in subsidiaries, 
joint ventures and associates at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and 
losses on equity  investments  in  other  comprehensive  income,  there  is  no  subsequent reclassifica�on of fair value gains 
and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the 
Company's right to receive payments is established.

 (C) Derecogni�on:

  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obliga�on to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' 
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the 
Company has neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset.

  When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates' if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substan�ally all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 
Company con�nues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's con�nuing involvement. In that 
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured 
on a basis that reflects the rights and obliga�ons that the Company has retained.

  Con�nuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of considera�on that the Company could be required to 
repay.

 (D) Impairment:

  In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recogni�on 
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

  a)  Financial assets that are debt investments, and are measured at amor�sed cost e.g., loans, debt securi�es, deposits, 
and bank balance, Lease receivables and Trade receivables

  The Company follows  'simplified approach'  for recogni�on of impairment loss allowance on:Trade receivables which do 
not contain a significant financing component.

  All lease receivables resul�ng from transac�ons.

  The applica�on of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 
impairment loss allowance based on life�me ECLs at each repor�ng date, right from its ini�al recogni�on.

  For recogni�on of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether 
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since ini�al recogni�on. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 
12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, life�me ECL is 
used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since  ini�al  recogni�on, then the  en�ty  reverts to  recognising impairment loss allowance based 
on 12-month ECL.

 (ii) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

 (A) Classifica�on:

  The Company classifies all financial liabili�es as subsequently measured at amor�sed cost, except for financial liabili�es 
at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabili�es, including deriva�ves that are liabili�es, shall be subsequently 
measured at fair value.
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 (B) Ini�al recogni�on and measurement:

 Financial liabili�es are classified, at ini�al recogni�on, as financial liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss,  loans and 
borrowings, payables, or as deriva�ves designated as hedging instruments in an effec�ve hedge, as appropriate.

 All financial liabili�es are recognised ini�ally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 
directly a�ributable transac�on costs.

 The Company's  Financial liabili�es include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdra�s, 
financial guarantee contracts and deriva�ve financial instruments.

 Financial liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabili�es held for trading and financial liabili�es 
designated upon ini�al recogni�on as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabili�es are classified as held for trading if 
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes deriva�ve financial 
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge rela�onships as defined 
by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded deriva�ves are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effec�ve 
hedging instruments.

 Gains or losses on liabili�es held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. Financial liabili�es designated upon ini�al 
recogni�on at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the ini�al date of recogni�on, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 
109 are sa�sfied.  For  liabili�es  designated  as  FVTPL,  fair value gains/ losses a�ributable to changes in own credit risk are 
recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer 
the cumula�ve gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

 Loans and borrowings

 A�er ini�al  recogni�on,  interest-bearing loans and  borrowings are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the 
effec�ve interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabili�es are derecognized.

 Amor�sed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisi�on and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amor�sa�on is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

 This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

 Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabili�es. The dividends on these 
preference shares are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

 Where the terms of a financial liability are renego�ated and the en�ty issues equity instruments to a creditor to ex�nguish all 
or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

 (C) Derecogni�on:

 A  financial  liability  is  derecognised when the obliga�on  under the  liability  is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
exis�ng financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substan�ally different terms, or the terms of an 
exis�ng liability are substan�ally modified, such an exchange or modifica�on is treated as the derecogni�on of the original 
liability and the recogni�on of a new liability. The difference in the respec�ve carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss.

 (iii) OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT:

 Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an inten�on to se�le on a net basis or realise the asset and 
se�le the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be con�ngent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counterparty.

 (iv) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT:

 The Company uses deriva�ve financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to 
interest rate and foreign exchange risks. For contracts  where  hedge  accoun�ng  is  not  followed,  such  deriva�ve  financial 
instruments are ini�ally recognised at fair value on the date on which a deriva�ve contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss account. Deriva�ves are carried as financial assets when the 
fair value is posi�ve and as financial liabili�es when the fair value is nega�ve.
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 (v)  INCOME RECOGNITION:

  Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effec�ve interest rate method. The effec�ve interest rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts es�mated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the 
gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calcula�ng the effec�ve interest rate, the company es�mates the 
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, 
extension, call and similar op�ons) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

(d) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, 
demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other short term highly liquid 
investments. To be classified as cash and cash equivalents, the financial asset must:

 - be readily conver�ble into cash;

 - have an insignificant risk of changes in value; and

 - have a maturity period of three months or less at acquisi�on.

 Bank overdra�s are repayable on demand and form an integral part of an en�ty's cash management, and are included as a 
component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdra�s are shown within borrowings in current liabili�es in the balance 
sheet.

(e) REVENUE RECOGNITION

 The company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to the en�ty a�er providing the services to the customers.

 (i) Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considera�on received or receivable for goods supplied and services 
rendered, net of returns and discounts to customers. Revenue from the sale of goods includes du�es which the Company 
pays as a principal but excludes amounts collected on behalf of third par�es, such as goods and service  tax and other 
value added tax.

  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to 
the customer, which is mainly upon delivery, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the 
considera�on is probable. 

 (ii) Revenue from interest is recognised on �me propor�on basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

  The company uses significant judgments in accordance with IND AS 115 while determining the transac�on price 
allocated to performance obliga�ons using the expected cost plus margin approach.

  Provisions for es�mated losses are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected 
contract es�mates at the repor�ng date.

  The standard (IND AS 115) permits two possible methods of transi�on:

  Retrospec�ve approach – Under this approach, the standard will be applied retrospec�vely to each prior repor�ng 
period presented in accordance with Ind As 8 – Accoun�ng policies, Changes in Accoun�ng es�mates and Errors.

  The Company has adopted the Standard (Ind AS-115) on and from April 1, 2018 by using cumula�ve catch up transac�on 
method and accordingly compara�ves for the year ended March 31, 2018 has not been retrospec�vely adjusted.

 (iii) Dividend income is stated at gross and is recognized when right to receive payment is established.

(f) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 The Company has various schemes of re�rement benefits such as Provident Fund, Superannua�on Fund and Gratuity Fund 
duly recognized.

 (i)  Short-term obliga�ons

  Liabili�es for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be se�led wholly within 12 
months a�er the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the repor�ng period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabili�es are se�led. The liabili�es are presented as current employee benefit obliga�ons in the balance sheet.
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  The employees of the company are en�tled to leave benefits as per the policy of the Company. As per leave policy of the 
Company, liability for leave is treated as short term in nature. Provision towards short term accrued leave is made based 
on accumulated leave balances of employees on the payroll of the Company at year end.

 (ii) Post-employment obliga�ons

  The company operates the following post-employment schemes:

  Gratuity obliga�ons –

  Maintained as a defined benefit re�rement plan and contribu�on is made to the Life Insurance Corpora�on of India. The 
liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the 
defined benefit obliga�on at the end of the repor�ng period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit 
obliga�on is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

  The present value of the defined benefit obliga�on is determined by discoun�ng the es�mated future cash ou�lows by 
reference to market yields at the end of the repor�ng period on government bonds that have terms approxima�ng to the 
terms of the related obliga�on. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the 
defined benefit obliga�on and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 
statement of profit and loss.

  Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assump�ons are 
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined 
benefit obliga�on resul�ng from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past 
service cost.

  Provident Fund –

  The Company pays provident fund contribu�ons to a fund administered by Government Provident Fund Authority. The 
Company has no further payment obliga�ons once the contribu�ons have been paid. The contribu�ons are accounted 
for as defined contribu�on plans and the contribu�ons are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. 
Prepaid contribu�ons are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduc�on in the future payments is 
available.

(g) LEASES

 Transi�on to Ind AS 116 

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and 
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has no�fied Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the 
exis�ng lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases and other interpreta�ons. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recogni�on, 
measurement, presenta�on and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet 
lease accoun�ng model for lessees. The Company is to adopt Ind AS 116, effec�ve annual repor�ng period beginning  April 1, 
2019 and apply the standard to its leases, retrospec�vely, with the cumula�ve effect of ini�ally applying the standard, 
recognised on the date of ini�al applica�on (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, the Company is not to restate compara�ve 
informa�on, instead, the cumula�ve effect of ini�ally applying this standard is to be recognised as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings as on  April 1, 2019.  

(h) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

 (i)  Presenta�on Currency

  These financial statements are presented in INR which is the Func�onal Currency of the Company.

 (ii)  Transac�ons and balances

  The foreign currency balances receivable/payable as at the year end are converted at the closing rate and exchange 
difference has been recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss. The company classifies all its foreign opera�ons as 
integral in nature.

(i)  TAXES ON INCOME

 Current income tax is recognized based on the amount expected to be paid to the tax authori�es, using tax rates and tax laws 
that have been enacted or substan�ally enacted on the date of balance sheet. 
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 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabili�es and their carrying amounts in the separate financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
all deduc�ble temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available 
to u�lise those temporary differences and losses.

 Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabili�es 
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxa�on authority. Current tax assets and tax liabili�es are offset 
where the en�ty has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to se�le on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 
se�le the liability simultaneously.

 Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, respec�vely.

(j) DIVIDENDS

 Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the 
Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

(k) EARNINGS PER SHARE

 Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares and dilu�ve equity equivalent shares 
outstanding during the period, except when results will be an�-dilu�ve.

(l)  PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obliga�on that can be es�mated reliably, 
and it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on. Provisions are recognised at 
the best es�mate of the expenditure required to se�le the present obliga�on at the balance sheet date. The provisions are 
measured on an undiscounted basis.

 Provision in respect of loss con�ngencies rela�ng to claims, li�ga�on, assessment, fines, penal�es, etc. are recognised when 
it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be es�mated reliably.

 A con�ngent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obliga�on, or a present obliga�on that may, but 
probably will not, require an ou�low of resources, or a present obliga�on whose amount cannot be es�mated reliably.  
Con�ngent liabili�es do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed, unless the possibility of ou�low of resources is remote.

 Con�ngent assets  are neither recognised  nor disclosed  in the  financial  statements. However, con�ngent assets are 
assessed con�nually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income 
are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

(m) INVENTORIES

 Inventories are valued at cost which is based on FIFO method or net realisable value, whichever is lower. 
Unserviceable/damaged/discarded stocks and shortages are charged to the statement of Profit or Loss.

(n) Assets held for Sale

 Non current assets are classified under 'Assets held for sale' if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally 
through sale rather than through con�nuing use. The condi�on for classifica�on as 'assets held for sale' is fulfilled when the 
non current asset is expected to be sold immediately and it is highly probable that such sale will be completed within one 
year from the date of classifica�on as 'assets held for sale'.

2. Recent accoun�ng pronouncements  

New standards/amendments that are not yet effec�ve and have not been early adopted:  

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) no�fies new standards or amendments to the exis�ng standards under Companies (Indian 
Accoun�ng Standards) Rules as issued from �me to �me.On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below. Ind AS 16 – Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess 
of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of tes�ng, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted 
from the directly a�ributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effec�ve date for 
adop�on of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or a�er April 1, 2022. Ind AS 37 – Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es 
and Con�ngent Assets – The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly 
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to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would 
be direct labour, materials) or an alloca�on of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the 
alloca�on of the deprecia�on charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effec�ve 
date for adop�on of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or a�er April 1, 2022, although early adop�on is permi�ed.   

3. Significant es�mates and judgements  

 (a ) The prepara�on of financial statements requires the use of accoun�ng es�mates which, by defini�on, will seldom equal 
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company’s accoun�ng policies.This 
note provides informa�on about the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which 
are more likely to be materially adjusted due to es�mates and assump�ons turning out to be different than those 
originally assessed. 

 (b ) The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires management to 
make es�mates, judgments and assump�ons. These es�mates, judgments and assump�ons affect the applica�on of 
accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es. The disclosures of con�ngent assests and liabili�es 
at the date of finincial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accoun�ng 
es�mates could changes in es�mates are madeas management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding 
the es�mates. Differences between the actual results and es�mates are recognized in the year in which the result are 
known /  materialized and, if material their effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

  Applica�on of accoun�ng policies that require significant areas of es�ma�on, uncertainty and cri�cal judgments and the 
use of assump�ons in the financial statements have been disclosed below. The key assump�ons concerning the future 
and other key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabili�es within the nest financial year are discussed below: 

 a.  Determining whether as arrangement contain leases and classifica�on of leases : The Company enters into service / 
hiring arrangements for various assests / services. The determina�on of lease and classifica�on of the sevice / hiring 
arrangement as a finance lease or opera�ng lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited 
to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's op�on to purchase and es�mated certainty of 
exercise of such op�on, propor�on of lease term to the asset's economic life, propor�on of present value of minimum 
lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.  

 b.  Fair value as Deemed cost for PPE and Investment Property : The Company has opted to use its previous GAAP carrying 
amounts as on the date of transi�on i.e. 1st April 2016 as its deemed costs. 

 c.  Deprecia�on of and impairment loss on property, plant and equipment / investment property : Property, plant and 
equipment and Investment Property (except land) are depreciated on wri�en down value method over the es�mated 
useful lives in accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, taking into account the es�mated residual value, 
wherever applicable. The Company reviews the es�mated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the 
amount of deprecia�on to be recorded during any repor�ng period. This reassessment may result in change in 
deprecia�on expense in future periods.  

  The company reviews its carrying value of its Tangible and Investment Property whenever there is objec�ve evidence tha 
the assets are impaired. The required level of impairment losses to be made is es�mated by reference to the es�mated 
value in use or recoverable amount. 

 d.  Impairment loss on trade receivables : The Company evaluates whether there is any objec�ve evidence that trade 
receivables are impaired and determinies the amount of impairment loss as a result of the inability of the debtors to 
make required payments. The Company bases the es�mates on the ageing of the trade receivable balance, credit 
worthiness of the receivables and historival write-off experience. If the financial condi�ons of the trade receivable were 
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than es�mated.  

  Es�ma�on of uncertain�es rela�ng to the global health pandemic COVID-19 (COVID-19):   

  The Company had considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic rela�ng to COVID-19 in the 
prepara�on of these standalone financial statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and 
non-financial assets. In developing the assump�ons rela�ng to the possible future uncertain�es in the global economic 
condi�ons because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial statements, used 
internal and external sources of informa�on including credit reports and related informa�on and economic forecasts and 
expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The  impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial 
statements may differ from that es�mated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements. 
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5.  Investments
 In Equity Instruments
  Quoted -
   Other Body Corporate  (Equity investments at Fair value 
             through other comprehensive income)
  Usha Ispat Limited                            -                                 -               
   300 (2020 - 300) Equity Shares of  INR 10 each, fully paid
  Core Health Care Limited  0.01                          0.01             
   100 (2020 - 100) Equity Shares of  INR 10 each, fully paid      
  State Bank of India                     8.88                          6.56             
   1800 (2020 - 1800) Equity Shares of  INR 1 each, fully paid
  Bata India Limited                171.67                     123.04             
   8750 (2020 - 8750) Equity Shares of  INR 5 each, fully paid
  Infosys Limited   15.87                        11.38             
   832 ( 2020 - 416) Equity Shares of  INR 5 each, fully paid
  Reliance Industries Limited  82.53             
   4120 ( 2020 -4120) Equity Shares of  INR 10 each, fully paid
  Reliance Industries Limited  116.10 3.14 
   Right Issue of 288 shares on 11.6.2020 at Rs 90,504/-
  India Steel Works Limited 0.01 0.01             
   250( 2020 - 250) Equity Shares of  INR 1 each, fully paid
  Reliance Capital Limited 0.01 0.01             
   51 (2020 - 51) Equity Shares of  INR 10 each, fully paid
  Reliance Communica�ons Limited                    0.03  0.02
   1030 (2020 - 1030) Equity Shares of  INR 5 each, fully paid
  Reliance Infrastructure  Limited 0.09 0.03
   77 (2020 - 77) Equity Shares of  INR 10 each, fully paid
  Reliance Power Limited 0.03 0.01
   257 (2020 - 257) Equity Shares of  INR 10 each, fully paid
  Reliance Home Finance Limited 0.01 0.01
   51 (2020 - 51) Equity Shares of  INR 10 each, fully paid
 Unquoted -
 In Others En��es (at Cost) -Refer Note below
  Jamipol Limited                 80.00                      80.00
   800,000 (2020 - 800,000) Equity Shares of  INR 10 each, fully paid
 Investments In Mutual Fund (At Fair value through other comprehensive income) 
  UTI Equity Fund - Dividend Plan (NAV)                  16.76 15.10
   11688 (2020 - 10,000) Units of  INR 10 each
  SBI Large & Midcap Fund - Regular Dividend (NAV)                   16.53                       13.02
   10000 (2020 - 10,000) Units of  INR 10 each
  HDFC Large and Mid Cap Fund - Regular Growth Plan (NAV)                     7.42                          5.82
  4000 ( 2020 - 4,000) Units of  INR 10 each 
  Total Investments              433.42                  340.69
Note: The Company holds 800,000 shareof RS 10 each  in an unlisted en�ty "Jamipol Limited".  Since the shares of Jamipol Limited are unquoted and this 
being a strategic investment, there is a wide range of possible fair value measurement. The management of the Company has concluded that cost 
represents the best es�mate of fair value within the range. Therefore the investment in Equity Shares of Jamipol Limited will be carried at cost unless there 
is any significant change in fair value.

 Aggregate amount of quoted investments  353.41 260.63
 Market value of quoted investments  353.41  260.69
 Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  80.00  80.00

As at
 31 March, 2022

As at
 31 March, 2021

      Amount in Lakhs
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6 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Advance to Related Par�es                                -                                - 
Fixed Deposit more than 12 months maturity         281.39 262.08
Security Deposits             73.54 62.58
Less: Provision for Doub�ul Deposits          (24.75)      (-24.75) 
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits             17.23 15.47 
  347.41 315.38 

7 OTHER NON-CURRENT  ASSETS
Other Advances recoverable - considered doub�ul  0.22 0.22
Less : Provision for Doub�ul Advance                 (0.22)             (-0.22)
Deferred Rent Expense- Security Deposit Assets                0.43 4.77
               0.43 4.77

8 INVENTORIES 
(At lower of cost or net realisable value)
Stock in trade            315.17 72.24
  315.17 72.24

10  Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand                 6.41 6.53 

 Balances with Banks Current Accounts          180.98 282.23
 187.39 288.76

11 Other Bank Balances
Unpaid Dividend Accounts            24.76 40.29

 Fixed Deposit having Maturity less than 12 months  50.20  
 74.96 40.29

12  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Interest Accrued on deposits                              -                                  -   
Prepaid Expenses               5.44                   3.73 
Deferred Rent Expense- Security Deposit Assets- Current Por�on   -       808.78        
Advances to Related Par�es         1,508.30         441.95 
Other Advances         45.35           39.38 
Advance to Vendors            1,559.09               1,293.84 
           

13  CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Opening balance             95.74              53.41
Less: Tax payable for the year                              -                                  -   
Add: Taxes paid            140.08               42.32 
Add/(Less): Refund/adjustment for earlier years                              -                                  -   
Total Current Tax Assets (Net)          235.82              95.73 

Ind AS
31 March, 2022

Ind AS
31 March, 2021

Ind AS
31 March, 2022

Ind AS
31 March, 2021

(I)   Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good  3,181.01   241.53   14.85   -     25.41   3,462.80 

  2,957.54   26.93   54.20   -   25.41   3,064.08 

(ii)   Undisputed Trade Receivables-considered doub�ul  -     -     -     -     

(iii)  Disputed Trade Receivables considered good      

(iv)  Disputed Trade Receivables considered doub�ul      45.00   45.00 

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule 2021-2022 

      Amount in Lakhs

More than 
3 Years Par�culars Less than 

6 Months 
6 Months-

1 Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment 

9 
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NOTE- Italic Represents figures for previous Years.
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Ind AS
March 31, 2022

Ind AS
March 31, 2021

15. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
 AUTHORISED
 7,500,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each  750.00  750.00
 (2021 -7,500,000)
    750.00  750.00
 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID UP
 6,000,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each  600.00  600.00
 (2021-6,000,000) 
    600.00  600.00

 
    

 a)  Reconcilia�on of Share Capital
  As at April 1, 2020 60,00,000.00  600.00
  Change during the year  -  -
  As at March 31, 2021 60,00,000.00  600.00
  Change during the year  - -
  As at March 31, 2022 60.00  600.00

 b)  Rights and preferences a�ached to equity shares :

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. These shares rank pari passu in all 
respects including vo�ng rights and en�tlement to dividend except interim dividend declared by the Board and 
approved at the shareholder's mee�ng.

 c)  Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company :

 Late Dasho Ugen Dorji                                  1,216,000                      20.2667                       1,216,000                     20.2667

Shareholding of Promoters

    

Name of Promoter No.of Shares % of Total Shares % change during the year 

Late Dasho Ugen Dorji  12,16,000   20.27  - 

      Amount in Lakhs
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Number of
Shares

As at March 31, 2021
(% of holding)

As at March 31, 2022
(% of holding)

Number of
Shares

Equity share
    capital 

       (per value)

Number of 
    Shares 

       (per value)



Ind AS
March 31, 2022

Ind AS
March 31, 2021

16. OTHER EQUITY 

(I)  Capital Reserve  

  As per last Account  5.95   5.95 

  Adjustment during the year        

  Closing Balance   5.95   5.95 

  Security Premium   NIL   NIL 

(ii)  General Reserve  

  As per last Account   38.79   38.79 

  Adjustment during the year        

  Closing Balance   38.79   38.79 

     

(iii) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss     

  Opening Balance   915.38   641.90 

        

  Add: Profit during the year  as per Statement of Profit & Loss   412.35   273.48 

  

  Less:   Alloca�ons / Appropria�ons  

              Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares  

              Tax on Dividend  

 Ind AS Adjustments  

  Deferred Tax Asset Created on Fair value remeasurement of Security Deposit   

  Fair value measuement of Security Deposit paid  

  Life�me expected credit loss  on Trade Receivables  

  Life�me expected credit loss  on Advance given to Vendors  1,327.73   915.38 

     

 FVOCI - Equity Instruments     

  As per last Account   216.01   149.06 

  Add: Gain on fair valua�on of Investments    90.29   78.29 

  Add : Deferred tax on employee benefits for the year   2.52   0.82 

  Add: Acturial Gain provided for the year on employee benefits  

  Add: Deferred Tax Asset Created on employee benefit for the year  

  Add: Deferred Tax Asset Created on Fair value measurement of Investments  

  Less: Loss on fair valua�on of Investments   

  Less: Deferred Tax Liability Created on employee benefit for the year  

  Less: Deferred Tax Liability Created on Fair value measurement of Investments  10.73   9.00 

  Less: Loss on fair valua�on of Investments         

  Less: Acturial loss provided for the year on employee benefits   9.69   3.16 

  Less: Remeasurnment of post-employment benefit obliga�on net of tax        288.40   216.01 

        

 Total of Other Equity   1,660.87   1,176.13 

   

 NOTE  

  There is no Share Applica�on money pending allotment and no equity component of compound Financial 
Instrument which is to be disclosed separately under "Other Equity"

      Amount in Lakhs
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17. PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  
  Leave Encashment (Unfunded)  -     -   
  Gratuity (Unfunded) 80.07 63.25
      80.07 63.25
18. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - NET   
   Deferred Tax Liabili�es on account of :   
       Fair Valua�on of Investment  43.97 33.24
       Fair Valua�on of Security Deposit-Asset  0.10 0.10
      Leave Encashment   13.75 13.75
      Provision for Gratuity  3.39 3.38
      Fair Valua�on of Security Deposit-Asset     
  Total deferred tax liabili�es (A)  61.21 50.47
 Deferred Tax Assets on account of :   
       Fair Valua�on of Investment  4.06 4.06
      Deprecia�on  41.69 27.00
   PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS  12.52  
   Provision for Leave Encashment & Dimuni�on Value of Investment  9.32 9.32
      Provision for Gratuity  25.23 17.75
      Fair Valua�on of Security Deposit-Asset & Other Advances  0.84 0.84
    Total deferred tax assets (B)  93.66 58.97

    Deferred Tax (Liabili�es)/Asset (Net) (B) - (A)  32.45 8.49

      Amount in Lakhs

TRADE PAYABLE AGEING SCHEDULE 2021-2022 

More than 
3 Years Par�culars Less than 

1 Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment 

19.

 (I)    MSME 86.29  -  -  - 86.29 
  77.31 2,456.10 -  -  2,533.41 
 (ii)   Others  2,818.86 61.23 - 33.74 2,913.82 
  61.23 33.74 - -  94.96 

 (iii)  Disputed Dues-MSME      -

 (iv)  Disputed Dues-Others      -

20. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
  Unclaimed Dividend 24.76                       40.29 
  Other Payables 7.61                          8.18 
  Liabili�es for stale cheques 0.27                         0.37 
  Security Deposits 26.78                       27.56
    59.42 76.40 
21. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Statutory Dues                   593.54 19.67  
  Advance from Customer                 439.51 499.59 
  Advance from Others                        6.32 436.10 
               1,039.37 955.36 
22. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
  Provision for LTA 0.21 0.21 
  Provision for Income Tax 242.79 62.50  
    243.00 62.71  

Ind AS
31st March, 2022

Ind AS
31st March, 2021

Ind AS
31st March, 2022

Ind AS
31st March, 2021

NOTE- Italic Represents figures for previous Years.
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23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION
  Leave Encashment  (Unfunded) 0.03 0.03 
  Gratuity (Unfunded) 29.61 28.54 
    29.64 28.57
24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
  Fruit Product                      969.78                          975.19 
  Calcium Carbide      
  Charcoal                  9,030.41                      6,836.53 
  Lam Coke                               26.83 
  Ferro Silicon                19,225.86                   10,329.17 
  Sale of Retail Products      
  Other Opera�ng Income                       856.38                          434.34 
    30,082.43                   18,602.06 
25. OTHER INCOME
  Interest (Gross)                         29.03                            20.99
  Dividend
  From Others - Long Term Investments (Trade)                         51.20                         244.79
  From Mutual Fund - Current Investments (Non-trade)
  Miscellaneous Income                         22.45                             15.11 
  Provisions/ Liabili�es Wri�en Back                            1.07                         741.02 
                       103.75                       1,021.91
26. PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
  Fruit Products                      669.40                          639.98 
  Calcium Carbide
  Charcoal                  8,068.96                     6,209.04 
  Lam Coke                               25.71 
  Ferro Silicon                19,246.74                   10,358.73 
  Retail Products
  Carraige Inward, Octroi Expenses and Other related expenses 50.23                            40.67 
    28,035.33 17,274.13  
27. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
  Opening Stock                         72.24                          238.17 
  Less : Closing Stock                       315.17                            72.24 
                    (242.93)                         165.93 
28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
  Salaries & Wages                      236.79                          244.41 
  Contribu�on to Provident fund and Other Funds                          25.15                            24.67 
  Provision for Gratuity                          11.31                            10.33 
  Staff Welfare Expenses                          14.60                             11.56 
          287.85                         290.97 
29. FINANCE COSTS
  Interest Expense                       0.28                                - 
    0.28                                -   
30.  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION   
  Tangible Assets                     13.45                          7.74 
  Intangible Assets                     13.62                         16.50 
                     27.07                        24.24
31. OTHER EXPENSES
  Rent                     38.12                        37.15 
  Repairs to Others                     35.09                       30.78
  Insurance                       6.47                           4.85 
  Rates and Taxes                        2.95                        (0.21)
  Electricity                        4.29                           4.53
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Ind AS
31st March, 2022

Ind AS
31st March, 2021

      Amount in Lakhs



    Travelling and Conveyance                     33.80                       24.07
  Communica�on Expense                       7.83                          8.77 
  Legal and Professional charges                     44.47                        34.33 
  Prin�ng and Sta�onery                       6.06                           2.39 
  Carriage Outward                   581.14                     371.68 
  Commission on Depot Sales                        1.44                           1.44 
  Commission Paid on Ferro Silicon                   519.25                     209.01 
  Breakage and Damages                      23.57                        18.24 
  Discount
  Provision for Doub�ul Advances
  Adver�sement, Publicity and Sales Promo�on                     15.43                          7.34 
  Other Selling Expenses                     68.45                        42.99 
  Debts and Advances wri�en off                    47.74                     739.50 
  Bank & Other Charges                        8.34                          7.56 
  Miscellaneous Expenses [Note 44]                     37.63                        23.25 
  Security Charges                        4.17                           4.88 
  Common expenses Stores      
  Director's si�ng fees                        3.10                          3.41 
  Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)                        1.98                          0.02 
  Provision for dimuni�on in value of Investments
    1,491.32                  1,575.98 
32. TAX EXPENSES
 Income Tax Expense
  (A) Income tax 
   Tax on profits for the year                   180.29                        62.50 
   Add :Tax adjustment rela�ng to earlier years a�er final assessment
   Total income tax                  180.29                      62.50 
  (B) Deferred tax
   Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets                  (34.70)                       (8.50)
   (Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabili�es                     10.74                        13.52 
   Total Deferred tax                    (23.96)                         5.02
   Add : Recognised in OCI                     (8.22)                        (8.19)
   Total Deferred tax charged to Profit & Loss A/c                  (32.18)                       (3.17)
         Total tax expense for the year                    148.11                       59.33 
  (C) Reconcilia�on of tax expense and the accoun�ng profit mul�plied by tax rate: 
   Profit before tax as per IND AS                 587.26                   304.27
   Add : Deprecia�on as per Companies Act                    27.07                        24.24 
   Add : Disallowance as per U/S 14A                     47.58                           3.17 
   Add : Loss on sale of Investment
   Add : Provision for Doub�ul Advances
   Add : Provision for Gratuity during the year                      11.31                        10.33 
   Add : Provision for Leave Encashment during the year                             0.59 
     673.23                   342.60 
   Less : Dividend income -u/s 10(34)
   Less : Deprecia�on as per Income Tax Act.                    22.07                        28.63
   Less : Payment of gratuity                        3.11                        14.57 
   Less : Payment of leave encashment                            16.81 
                   648.05                     282.59 
   Less : Set off against brought forward business loss   222.00 
   Net taxable income                648.05                      60.59 
   Tax on total income                 180.29                        15.75 
   Less : T.D.S - Relief u/s 90                     38.50                        15.75 
  Income tax expenses recognised in Statement of Profit/(Loss) A/c 141.79 -

Ind AS
31st March, 2022

Ind AS
31st March, 2021

      Amount in Lakhs
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31. OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.) 



PARTICULARS 

 Financial assets    
  Investments
  - Equity instruments  312.70    226.72  
  - Mutual Funds  40.71    33.97  
  - Subsidiary and Joint Venture    
  Trade Receivables  3462.80   3,064.08 
  Cash and cash equivalents  187.39   288.76 
  Other Bank Balance  74.96   40.29 
  Fixed Deposit more than 12 months maturity  281.39   262.08 
  Interest Accrued on deposits  17.23   15.47 
  Security deposits   48.79   37.82 
  Other Receivables    
  Advance to Related Par�es    
  Total financial assets 353.41  4072.56  260.69   3,708.50
     
 Financial liabili�es     
  Security deposits   26.78   27.56 
  Trade payables   3000.12   2,628.38 
  Unclaimed Dividend  24.76   40.29 
  Others   7.88   8.54 
  Total financial liabili�es  -    3059.54  -     2,704.77 

33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS   

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Financial instruments by category    

FVOCI  AMORTISED COSTFVOCI  AMORTISED COST

(I) Defined benefit plans

 a) G   ratuity
  The company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Such liability is 

recognised on the basis of actuarial valua�on following Projected Unit Credit Method. It is an unfunded plan.

 b)   Leave Obliga�on
  As per the policy of the company, obliga�ons on account of encashment of accumulated leave of an employee is 

se�led only on termina�on/ re�rement of the employee. Such liability is recognised on the basis of actuarial valua�on 
following Project Unit Credit Method.  It is an unfunded plan.As per the policy of the company, leave obliga�ons on 
account of accumulated leave on employee is se�led only on termina�on/re�rement of the employee. Such liability is 
recognised on the basis of actuarial valua�on following Projected Unit Credit Method. It is an unfunded plan.  The 
amount of the provision of .03 Lakhs (2021 – .03 Lakhs) is presented as current, since the company does not have an 
uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement for any of these obliga�ons. 

34.  Employee benefit obliga�ons

 Current  Non-curren  Current  TotalTotal Non-curren  

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Leave Encashment - Unfunded

Present value of obliga�on                               - -  -   -  -  - 

Gratuity - Unfunded

Present value of obliga�on 29.61 80.07 109.68 28.55 63.25 91.80 

Less: Fair value of plan assets                               - -  -   -  -   -

Net Liability  29.61 80.07 109.68 28.55 63.25 91.80

Total Employee Benefit Obliga�ons  29.61 80.07 109.68 28.55 63.25 91.80  

      Amount in Lakhs
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(ii)  Defined contribu�on plans

 The company also has certain defined contribu�on plans. Contribu�ons are made to provident fund in India for 
employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regula�ons. The contribu�ons are made to registered provident fund 
administered by the government. The obliga�on of the company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no 
further contractual nor any construc�ve obliga�on. 

 The contribu�ons to Defined Contribu�on Plans recognized as expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss are as follows

2020-21

15.76                    14.70 

7.14                   7.62

1.76                      1.85

Define Contribu�on Plans

Employers' contribu�on to Provident Fund               

Employers' contribu�on to Pension Fund               

Employers' contribu�on to ESIC                  

Employers' contribu�on to EDLI                    0.48                         0.50

2021-22

      Amount in Lakhs

 Leave 
Encashment 

 Present value 
of obliga�on 

 Fair value of plan 
assets 

 Net amount of 
obliga�on 

  Present value  

 Gratuity 

March 31, 2020 92.88 - 92.88  -
April 01, 2020 92.88 - 92.88  -
Current service cost                         4.88 - 4.88  -
Interest expense/(income) 5.44 - 5.44  -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 10.33  - 10.33  -
Remeasurements - -  -    -
Loss due to experience 1.89 - 1.89 
Change in Financial Assump�on 1.27 - 1.27 
Return on plan assets (greater)/
less than discount rate  - -  -    -  
 3.16 - 3.16 - 
Employer contribu�ons - 14.57 (14.57) -
Benefit payments (14.57) (14.57) -    -
March 31, 2021 91.80 - 91.80  -
Current service cost 5.84 - 5.84  -
Interest expense/(income) 5.48 - 5.48 
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 11.31 -  11.31 
Remeasurements - -  -    -
Loss / (Gain) due to experience (1.40) - (1.40) -
Change in Demographic Assump�on 0.06 - 0.06  -
Change in Financial Assump�on 11.02 - 11.02 
Return on plan assets (greater)/
less than discount rate  - -  -    -
 9.68 - 9.68 - 
Employer contribu�ons - 3.11 (3.11) -
Benefit payments (3.11) (3.11) - -   
March 31, 2022 109.68 - 109.68  -

(iii) Movement of defined benefit obliga�on and fair value of plan assets :
        The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obliga�on over the year are as follows:

The net liability disclosed above rela�ng unfunded plan are as follows:

PARTICULARS 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

March 31, 2022

GRATUITY : Present value of funded obliga�ons 109.68  91.80
- Fair value of plan assets - -
Deficit of funded plan  109.68 91.80
Deficit of Employee Benefit Plans   

March 31, 2021Par�culars
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Discount Rate  6.40%  6.07%  - 
Salary Growth Rate  5.00%  2.00%  - 
Expected Return on Plan Assets  Unfunded  Unfunded  - 
Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured - 
 Lives Mortality Lives Mortality  
 (2006-08) (2012-14)  
Withdrawal Rate Upto age 40 years Upto age 40 years 
 0.42% age 41-54 0.42% age 41-54  
 Years 0.18% age Years 0.18% age 
 55and above years 55and above years  
 0.22% 0.22%     
Weighted average dura�on of the defined

5.00 6.01  benefit plan (in years) 

(iv) Post-Employment benefits
The significant actuarial assump�ons were as follows:

      Amount in Lakhs

(v)  Sensi�vity analysis
        The sensi�vity of the defined benefit obliga�on to changes in the weighted principal assump�ons is:

Gratuity

Discount rate  1% 1%  (5.03) (4.22) 5.65 4.67 

Salary growth rate 1% 1% 5.08 3.94 (4.57) (3.58)

Withdrawal rate 50% 50% 0.05 0.11 (0.05) (0.11)

Mortality rate 10% 10% 0.03 0.06 (0.03) (0.06) 

Change in
assump�on Increase

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Impact on defined benefit obliga�on
DecreasePar�culars

The above sensi�vity analyses are based on a change in an assump�on while holding all other assump�ons constant. In prac�ce, this is unlikely 
to occur, and changes in some of the assump�ons may be correlated. When calcula�ng the sensi�vity of the defined benefit obliga�on to 
significant actuarial assump�ons the same method i.e. projected unit credit method has been applied as that used for calcula�ng the defined 
benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.               

(VI)  RISK EXPOSURE                

The defined benefit obliga�ons have the  undermen�oned risk exposures :               

INTEREST RATE RISK : The defined benefit obliga�on calculated uses a discount rate based on yield on long term government bonds. The 
Company is exposed to the risk of fall in discount rate. A fall in discount rate will eventually increase in the ul�mate cost of providing the 
above benefit thereby increasing the value of the liability              . 

SALARY INFLATION RISK : Future salary increase assumed here has three basic components, namely, increase due to price infla�on, 
increase due to increase in future living standard (periodic wage re-nego�a�on) and increase due to career progress by way of promo�on 
as more skill is acquired. The Scheme cost is very sensi�ve to the assumed future salary escala�on rates for all final salary defined benefit 
Schemes. If actual future salary escala�ons are higher than that assumed in the valua�on actual Scheme cost and hence the value of the 
liability will be higher than that es�mated. 

DEMOGRAPHIC RISK : In the valua�on of the liability certain demographic (mortality and a�ri�on rates) assump�ons are made. The 
Company is exposed to this risk to the extent of actual experience eventually being worse compared to the assump�ons thereby causing 
an increase in the scheme cost. 

PAY-AS-YOU-GO RISK:   For unfunded schemes financial planning could be difficult as the benefits payable will directly affect the revenue 
and this could be widely fluctua�ng from year to year. Moreover there may be an opportunity cost of be�er investment returns affec�ng 
adversely the cost of the scheme.

LIQUIDITY RISK: This risk arises from the short term asset and liability cash-flow mismatch thereby causing the company being unable to 
pay the benefits as they fall due in the short term. Such a situa�on could be the result of holding large illiquid assets disregarding the 
results of cash-flow projec�ons and cash outgo inflow mismatch. (Or it could be due to insufficient assets/cash.) 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

GRATUITY LEAVE ENCASHENT
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Par�culars



PARTICULARS

March 31, 2022                
Gratuity  30.54   50.39   47.12 33.31    161.36            
Leave encashment  -     -     -     -     -              
Total 30.54 50.39 47.12 33.31 161.36 
March 31, 2021                
Gratuity  29.40   28.82  49.09 28.77     130.08            
Leave encashment  -     -     -     -     -              
Total 29.40 22.82 49.09 28.77 130.08

Less than 
a year

Between
2 - 5 years

Between
6 - 10 years

Beyond
10 years Total

(VII)  DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS                

Expected contribu�on to post employment benefit plan for the year ending March 31, 2022 is INR NIL as they are unfunded.

The weighted average dura�on of the defined benefit obliga�on is 5 years (2021 - 6.01 years) in case of Gratuity. The expected maturity 
analysis of undescended gratuity and leave encasements is as follows: 

35. Other notes to Financial Statements

 35.1 C on�ngent liabili�es

  A claim of 68.00 Lakhs towards enhanced municipal taxes over 10% of the previous rate was raised by the landlords 
of the premises from where the Company, as a sub-tenant, was opera�ng one of its retail stores, in terms of the 
Company’s sub tenancy agreement  with them.

  The said claim has been disputed by the Company on the ground that the said enhancement pertained to 
assessment of Annual Valua�on based on the status (residen�al or commercial) of the property in ques�on, which 
the Landlords had concealed before the municipal authori�es as well as before the Company and the Company has 
ini�ated legal proceedings which are on. 

 35.2 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received include 742.37 Lakhs (previous year - 742.37 
Lakhs) on Account of Tai Projects Private Ltd, in which one of the directors of the Company is also a director, 
incorporated with an object of se�ng up of a Family Entertainment Complex (FEC) at Nonadanga in Eastern 
Metropolitan, Kolkata in pursuance of a decision to make investment in the said Company, which was approved by 
the share holders of the Company in its Annual General Mee�ng held on 17 September 2002. The Company is not in 
physical possession of the complex. The Company has ini�ated legal proceedings against KMDA which is now 
pending disposal before the Calcu�a High Court. 

 35.3 The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act,2006 has been determined to the extent such par�es have been iden�fied on the basis of 

stinforma�on available with the Company. The disclosures rela�ng to Micro and Small enterprises as at 31  March, 
2022 are as under:  

Note: As per terms of purchase, no interest is payable by the Company to the party covered under MSMED Act, 2006.

Amount
outstanding as at 
31st, March, 2021

Amount
outstanding as at

 31st, March, 2022

Sl.
No. 

Descrip�on 

1.  The principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the  end of the year  66.83  54.27

2 . The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the accoun�ng year   
  NIL  NIL
3.  The amount of interest paid in terms of sec�on 16, along with the amount of the payment  
 made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year 2017-18 NIL  NIL

4.  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
 have  been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the   NIL  NIL
 interest specified under the act. 

5.  The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of the  
 accoun�ng year. NIL  NIL

6.  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
 un�l such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises,  NIL  NIL
 for the purpose of disallowance as a deduc�ble expenditure under sec�on 23. 

      Amount in Lakhs

      Amount in Lakhs
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 35.4.Reconcilia�on of GST liability for the year with Input Tax Credit for GST is nearing comple�on.

  Addi�onal regulatory informa�on:

  a. Title deeds of Immovable Proper�es are held in the name of the Company.

  b. The Company is not in possession of any investment property.

  c. There is no revalua�on  based on valua�on by a Registered Valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies 
(Registered Valuers and Valua�on) Rules, 2017 of any of the assets held as property, plant and equipment 
including the.

   There is no revalua�on  based on valua�on by a Registered Valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies 
(Registered Valuers and Valua�on) Rules, 2017 of any of the Intangible assets of the Company.

  d. There are no loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, Directors, KMP and the related 
par�es ( as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 ) either severally or jointly with any other person that are  i. 
repayable on demand or (ii) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

  e. The Company has  no Capital Work-in-progress.

  f. There are no intangible assets under development.

  g. There are no  proceedings ini�ated or pending against the company for holding any  benami  property under the 
Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

  h. The Company has no borrowings from banks or financial ins�tu�ons on the basis of security of current assets.

  I. The company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or other lenders.

  j. The Company has no transac�ons/rela�onships with companies struck off under sec�on 248 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 or sec�on 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

  k. The Company presently has no loans and there are no charges or sa�sfac�on of charges to be registered with ROC 
beyond the statutory period.

  l. The Company has no subsidiary.

  m. Financial Ra�os of the Current year with previous year compara�ves are men�oned in note no. 46 Further the 
Company not being a Banking Company under the Banking Regula�on Act,1949 some of the ra�os like Capital to 
risk-weighted assets ra�oo (CRAR), Tier I, CRAR, Tier II CRAR, Liquidity Coverage Ra�o is not applicable.

  n. There has been no arrangement in terms of Sec�on 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

   U�lisa�on of Borrowed funds and share premiumo.

   (A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including  foreign en��es (Intermediaries) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall (i) directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the 
Ul�mate Beneficiaries;

   (B)  The  company has not received any fund from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (Funding 
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the company shall (i) directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ul�mate Beneficiaries,
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b)    Transac�ons with Related Par�es for the year ended March 31, 2022
        (in ordinary course of business at arm's length and on commercial terms)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 (a) List of Related Par�es (as iden�fied by the Management)

 A. Key Management Personnel of the company and close member of Key Management Personnel of the company:

   Dasho Wangchuk Dorji - Chairman   Ms. Sarada Hariharan❶ ❻

   Dasho Topgyal Dorji - Director   Mr. Rohan Ghosh - Managing Director❷ ❼

   Mr. Prem Sagar   Mrs. Mou Mukherjee – Chief Financial Officer❸ ❽

   Mr. K. N. Malhotra  Ms. Priyanka Mukherjee-Company Secretar❹ ❾ 

   Mr. Vinay Killa  ❺

 B. Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and close member of Key management Personnel have Control:

   Bhutan Fruit Products Private Limited   Bhutan Carbide and Chemicals Limitedm m

    Bhutan Eco Ventures Private Limited   Bhutan Ferro Alloys Limited m m

    Bhutan Brewery Private Limited   Tashi Infocom Limitedm m

    Tashi Metals Private Limited   Tashi Commercial Corpora�onm m

    T Bank Limited   Tai Projects Private Limitedm m

    Tashi Beverages Limited   JAMIPOL Limitedm m

    Bhutan Hyundai Motors   Royal Insurance Corpora�on of Bhutan Limitedm m

    Bhutan Silicon Metal Private Limited   Rijal Tashi Industries Private Limitedm m

    Bhutan Tourism Corpora�on Limited   Tashi Air Private Limitedm m

Key Management
Personnel of the company
and close member of Key

Management Personnel of
the company

Enterprises in which Key
Management Personnel and

close member of Key
management Personnel

have Control/Joint control
NATURE OF TRANSACTIONS

2022 2021 2022 2021
I)  EXPENSES :     

 Purchase of Good & Services:     

  Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Ltd.   11,439.21 6,293.93

  Bhutan Fruit Products Pvt. Ltd.    254.82   271.84 

  Bhutan Silicon Metals Pvt Ltd.    4,690.16   2,547.18  

  Tashi Metals Pvt. Ltd.    3,117.38   1,517.62  

      -   -  

 Salary & Wages:     
  Dasho Wangchuk Dorji  26.11  27.17  - - 
  Mr. Rohan Ghosh 24.98   25.81  - - 
  Mrs. Mou Mukherjee  20.67   21.03  - - 
  Ms. Priyanka Mukherjee 3.65  1.64 - -

 Si�ng Fees paid to other Directors  3.10   3.40 - -

 Rent:

  Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Ltd.   4.19  4.19  

  Bhutan Ferro Alloys Ltd.    4.07  4.07
 Royalty     

  Bhutan Fruit Products Pvt. Ltd.    18.11  17.02  

ii) INCOME:     

 Sale of Goods & Services:     

  Bhutan Ferro Alloys Ltd.(C.Coal)    -   935.81 

  Bhutan Carbide & Chemicals Ltd.(Charcoal)    4,328.54   3,284.87  

  Bhutan Silicon Metal Pvt. Ltd.(CHR+Qrtz)    2,893.84   1,531.81  

  Tashi Metals Pvt. Ltd.    3,794.27  1,619.07

      Amount in Lakhs
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c)   Outstanding Balances as on March 31, 2022

Key Management
Personnel of the company
and close member of Key

Management Personnel of
the company

Enterprises in which Key
Management Personnel and

close member of Key
management Personnel

have Control/Joint control

NATURE OF TRANSACTIONS

2022 2021 2022 2021
 PAYABLES :     

 For Goods & Services     

 BHUTAN FRUIT PRODUCTS LTD (Creditor)    275.66   470.53 

 BHUTAN CARBIDE & CHEMICALS LTD (Cr)    7.00   1.43

 BHUTAN SILICON METAL PVT. LTD.   156.23   -

 TASHI METALS PRIVATE LIMITED    382.03  -    

 RECEIVABLES :     

 For Goods & Services

  BHUTAN CARBIDE & CHEMICALS(Dr)-Rent    8.88   11.77 

  BHUTAN FERRO ALLOYS(RENT)(debtor)    3.52   2.72 

  BHUTAN SILICON METAL PVT. LTD.    598.65  599.23 

  BHUTAN CARBIDE & CHEMICALS LTD(dr)    1,518.20  1,463.10 

  TASHI METALS PRIVATE LIMITED    764.611   460.32 

  BHUTAN FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED(debtor)   -   12.42

 For loans

  BHUTAN FERRO ALLOYS LTD    29.62   29.62 

  BHUTAN HYUNDAI MOTORS    0.50   0.50 

  BHUTAN CARBIDE & CHEMICALS LTD    29.71   29.12 

  TPPL -EXPENSES    (417.98)  (429.49)

  TPPL -LAND    742.37   742.37 

  TASHI METALS PRIVATE LIMITED    8.11   7.66 

37. Segment Repor�ng

 The Company is primarily engaged in business of trading of goods and managed organisa�onally as a single unit. Therefore, 
according to the management, the Company's opera�ons are carried in a single segment.

38. Earnings per Equity share

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(a)  Basic earnings per share  6.87 4.56
(b)  Diluted earnings per share  6.87  4.56

(a)  Reconcilia�ons of earnings used in calcula�ng earnings per share
 Profit a�ributable to the equity holders of the company used in calcula�ng  412.35                 273.48
 basic earnings per share: 
 Profit a�ributable to the equity holders of the company used in calcula�ng 412.35                  273.48
 diluted earnings per share 

(b)  Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

 Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 6 0,00,000  60,00,000
 calcula�ng basic earnings per share 

 Adjustments for calcula�on of diluted earnings per share:  -  -
 Weighted average number of equity shares and poten�al equity shares  6 0,00,000  60,00,000
 used as the denominator in calcula�ng diluted earnings per share 

Par�culars

      Amount in Lakhs
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39. The Company has not obtained year-end confirma�on cer�ficates from most of Trade receivables and Trade Payables and for 
loans & advances and deposits. However, the Company has a system of obtaining balance confirma�ons more than once 
during the year and adjustment for difference in balance, arising out of such confirma�on/ reconcilia�on statement, is made 
in the accounts on receipt of final agreed balances/reconcilia�on statement. The management is of the opinion that the 
impact of adjustment, if any, on year-end balances is not likely to be significant.

 Furthermore, in the opinion of the mangement, all Trade Receivables, advances and Deposits (both current and non-current) 
would be realised at values at which these are stated in the accounts in the ordinary course of business.

40. Management is con�nuing with its efforts to locate the relevant papers and documents for reconciling old outstanding 
debtors balances and in the process has been able to recover / adjust substan�al funds.

41. A.  Exemp�ons and excep�ons availed

  A.1  Ind AS op�onal exemp�ons 

  Deemed cost

  Ind AS 101 permits a first-�me adopter to elect to con�nue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and 
equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transi�on to Ind AS, measured as per the previous 
GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transi�on. This exemp�on is also used for intangible assets covered 
by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets.

  Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their 
previous GAAP carrying value, which has been considered as deemed cost.

 A.2 Ind AS mandatory excep�ons

  (a)  Es�mates

 Es�mates made under Ind AS as at April 1, 2015 are consistent with the es�mates as under previous GAAP.

  (b) Classifica�on and measurement of financial assets 

  Ind AS 101 requires that an en�ty should assess the classifica�on of its financial assets on the basis of facts and 
circumstances exist on the date of transi�on. Accordingly, in its Opening Ind AS Balance Sheet, the company has 
classified all the financial assets on basis of facts and circumstances that existed on the date of transi�on, i.e., 
April 1, 2016.

42. The company has adopted IND AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers with effect from 1st April, 2019 using 
modified retrospec�ve approach certain payment mode to customers earlier classified as discount paid under the head 
other expenses are to be treated as variable component of considera�on and are therefore in accordance with IND AS 115 
have now been ne�ed off from sales, Revenue from opera�ons in the statement of profit and loss, has resulted in decrease in 
both revenue and expenses by 60.33 Lakhs (2021 -60.33 Lakhs). The impact on net profit on adop�on of IND AS 115 for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 is nil.

43. Miscellaneous expenses include

44. The previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amounts and other 
disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year Financial Statements and are to be read 
in rela�on to the accounts and other disclosures rela�ng to the current year.
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Auditor's Remunera�ons                                                                                                              20221-22                     2020-21

Amount paid/payable to Auditors 
Statutory Audit Fee  2.50  2.50
Tax Audit Fee  0.62 0.62
Other Cer�ficates  1.30 1.30
[(Reimbursement of Expenses [(Including Service-Tax: Nil ) 2020-21 : Nil)]                                -                                     -   
Total  4.42 4.42

      Amount in Lakhs



Signatures to Notes 1 to 46

46.  The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25/05/2022.

Increase in Earning before 
Interest and Tax during 
the Year.

Number of day's have gone 
up due to increase in 
revenue which resulted in 
rise of Debtor & turnover

Major increase in due to 
increase in Purchase 
during the year

1. Current Ra�o Current Asset Current Liabili�es 1.22 1.27 -4%

2. Debt-Equity Ra�o Total Debt Shareholders Equity 1.97 2.15 -8%

3. Debt Service Coverage Ra�o Earning Available Debt Service - - 0%
   for Debt Service 

4. Return on Equity  Profit A�er Tax Average  18.24 15.40 18% 
   Shareholders Fund

5. Inventory turnover Ra�o Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 43.86 45.36 -3%

6. Trade Receivable turnover Ra�o Net Credit Sales Average Account  8.96 8.05 11%
   Receivable

7. Trade Payable turnover Ra�o Purchase Average Trade  9.94 7.10 40%
   Payable

8. Net capital turnover Ra�o  Net Sales Working Capital 12.93 10.23 26%

9. Net Profit Ra�o  Net Profit Sales 1.37 1.47 -7%

10. Return on capital employed  Earning before  Capital  25.09 15.91 58%
  Interest & Taxes  Employed

11. Return on investment  Earning before  Average total  40.27 37.60 7%
  Interest & Taxes assets 

S.
No.

Reason for Variance
%  

Variance

31th 
March,
2022

Ra�os Numerator Denominator
31th 

March,
2021

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registra�on No. 311027E

VINAY KILLA
 Director

(DIN : 00060906)

ROHAN GHOSH
Managing Director
(DIN : 00032965)

PRIYANKA MUKHERJEE
Company Secretary

Membership No.A- 29620
MOU MUKHERJEE

Chief Financial Officer

 For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Kolkata
Date : 25.05.2022

ANJAN SIRCAR
Partner
Membership No. 050052

      Amount in Lakhs
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45.   FINANCIAL RATIO'S :



TAI INDUSTRIES LIMITED
53A, Mirza Ghalib Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 016

Ph No.:  (033) 4041 6666; Fax: (033) 22497319
E-mail: info@taiind.com; Website: www.taiind.com
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